DESIGN-BUILD AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF NASSAU COUNTY, FLORIDA

AND

C.C. BORDEN CONSTRUCTION, INC.

Table of Contents

Agreement	Declarations	PAGE
Section 1	Contract Documents	1
Section 2	Scope of Work	1-4
Section 3	Contract Amount	4
Section 4	Design-Build Firm Fees	4-5
Section 5	Bonds	5
Section 6	Contract Time and Liquidated Damages	5-6
Section 7	Exhibits Incorporated	6-7
Section 8	Notices	7
Section 9	Modification	7
Section 10	Successors and Assigns	7
Section 11	Governing Law	7-8
Section 12	No Waiver	8
Section 13	Entire Agreement	8
Section 14	Severability	8
Section 15	Public Records	8-9
Section 16	Request for Records; Noncompliance	9

Exhibits		PAGE
Exhibit A-	General Terms and Conditions	11-32
1.	Intent of Contract Documents	11
2.	Investigation and Utilities	12
3.	Progress Payments	12-13
4.	Payments Withheld	14
5.	Final Payment	14
6.	Submittals and Substitutions	14-15
7.	Daily Reports, As-Builts and Meetings	16-17
8.	Contract Time and Time Extensions	17-18
9.	Changes in the Work	18-19
10.	Claims and Disputes	19-20
11.	Other Work	20
12.	Indemnification and Insurance	20-23
13.	Compliance with Laws	23
14.	Cleanup and Protections	23-24
15.	Assignment	24
16.	Permits, Licenses and Taxes	24
17.	Termination for Default	24-26
18.	Termination for Convenience and Right of Suspension	26

Exhibit	ts		P	AGE
	19.	Completion		26-27
2	20.	Warranty		27
2	21.	Tests and Inspections		28
2	22.	Defective Work		28-30
2	23.	Supervision and Superintendents		30
2	24.	Protection of Work		30
2	25.	Emergencies		30-31
2	26.	Use of Premises		31
2	27.	Safety		31-32
2	28.	Project Meetings		32
Exhibit	B- Pe	rformance and Payment Bond		33-38
I	Perfor	mance Bond		33-35
I	Payme	ent Bond		36-38
Exhibit	C- Ins	surance and Safety		39-51
Exhibit	D- Re	lease and Affidavit		52-53
Exhibit	E- Fo	rm of Contract Application for Payment		54-56
Exhibit	F- Ch	ange Order		57
Exhibit	G – C	Owner Direct Purchases (Supplementary Conditions)		58-60
Exhibit	H – C	ontract Definitions		61-66
Exhibit	I – De	esign Criteria Package		67
Exhibit J – Schedule of Project Fees			68	
Exhibit	K – A	pproved GMP Drawings and Specifications		69

Exhibit L – Design/Pre-Construction Phase Schedule of Values	70
Exhibit M- Construction Phase Schedule of Values	71
Exhibit N– Design Build Firm Project Personnel Roster	72
Exhibit O - Project Schedule	73
Exhibit P – Price Proposal Form	74-94
Exhibit Q- Letter for Additional Design Fee	95

AGREEMENT

THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF NASSAU COUNTY, FLORIDA, ("County") a subdivision of the State of Florida with administrative offices at 96135 Nassau Place, Suite 1, Yulee, Florida 32097, hereby contracts with C.C. Borden Construction, Inc. ("Design-Build Firm"), a Florida corporation for profit with an address of 1019 Rosselle Street, Jacksonville, Florida 32204, to perform all work ("Work") in connection with Fire Station 71 Design/Build Project, ("Project"), as said Work is set forth in the Plans and Specifications furnished by the Design-Build Firm and other Contract Documents hereafter specified.

SECTION 1. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

- A. The Contract Documents consist of this Agreement, the Amendments and Exhibits described in Section 7 hereof, Change Orders, Work Directive Changes, Field Orders, and the solicitation documents, including addenda relating thereto. All of the foregoing Contract Documents are incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement (all of said documents, including this Agreement, sometimes being referred to herein as the "Contract Documents" and sometimes as the "Agreement"). A copy of the Contract Documents shall be maintained by Design-Build Firm at the Project site at all times during the performance of the Work.
- B. In case of any inconsistency or conflict among the provisions of the Agreement and any other terms and conditions of any documents comprising the Contract Documents, the provisions of the Agreement shall control. Concerning the Contract Documents, the order of precedence shall be as follows: 1) the Agreement, including Amendments and Exhibits; 2) Change Orders; 3) Work Directive Changes; 4) Field Orders; 5) the Solicitation Documents, including addenda. The Contract Documents listed above represent the entire and integrated agreement between the parties hereto, and supersede prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral.
- C. County shall furnish to the Design-Build Firm up to three (3) sets of the Contract Documents for execution of the Work. Additional copies of the Contract Documents shall be furnished, upon request, at the cost of reproduction.

SECTION 2. SCOPE OF WORK

A. Generally, Design-Build Firm will provide all planning, design, and architectural/engineering services required for the proper design and for all other services necessary for the construction of the Project.

B. Design-Build Firm's Responsibility with respect to Design

- 1) In fulfilling its obligations under this Section, Design-Build Firm shall employ Architects and Engineers of the appropriate specialties for proper preparation of the Project drawings and specifications, including structural, mechanical, electrical, soils, civil and such other specialties as are reasonably required. All such professional services shall be performed by appropriately State of Florida licensed personnel. Design-Build Firm takes responsibility for the proper performance of such architectural and engineering services.
- 2) The Design-Build Firm shall prepare and the County shall approve a Design Phase Schedule as follows:

(a) <u>DESIGN DEVELOPMENT</u>

The Design-Build Firm shall prepare Design Documents to fix the size and character of the Project as to structural, mechanical and electrical systems, materials, and other appropriate essential items in the Project. These Design Documents, as approved, shall be the basis for the construction of the Project.

(b) WORKING DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS

From approved Design Documents, the Design-Build Firm will prepare working Drawings and Specifications setting forth in detail the requirements for the construction of the Project, and based upon codes, laws, or regulations which have been enacted at the time of their preparation.

- The Design-Build Firm and the County will work closely together to monitor the design in accordance with prior approvals so as to ensure that the Project can be constructed within the amount as defined in Section 3. As these working Drawings and Specifications are being completed, the Design-Build Firm will keep the County advised of the effects of any County requested changes on the Contract Time Schedule and/or the Guaranteed Maximum Price ("GMP"). Construction of the Project shall be in accordance with these Drawings and Specifications as approved by the County and incorporated in the exhibits. The Drawings and Specifications shall remain the property of the County and may be used and/or re-used, in whole or in part, with or without modifications, by the County on this or other projects without the written consent of the Design-Build Firm.
- 4) After the completion of the Design Phase as set forth above in Subsection 2, if the Project is no longer feasible for any reason from the standpoint of the County, the County may terminate this Agreement and pay the Design-Build Firm the portion of the price associated with the Design Phase, pursuant to Section 3 "Contract Amount".

C. Responsibilities of Design-Build Firm with Respect to Construction

- 1) The Design-Build Firm will provide all construction supervision, inspection, labor, materials, tools, construction equipment, and subcontracted items of every kind and type necessary for the timely execution and full completion of the Project in a good workmanlike manner required by the Contract.
- 2) The Design-Build Firm will pay all sales, use, gross receipts and similar taxes related to the Work provided by the Design-Build Firm, which have been legally enacted at the time of execution of this Agreement and for which the Design-Build Firm is liable.
- 3) The Design-Build Firm will prepare and submit for the County's approval an estimated progress schedule for the Project using critical path method (CPM) using a software to be agreed with the County. This schedule shall include (1) a list of all activities required to complete the Project; (2) the duration of each activity; (3) the dependencies (e.g. finish to start, etc.) and logical end points such as milestones or deliverable items (Exhibit "O"). It shall be revised as required by the conditions of the Work and by those conditions and events, which are beyond the Design-Build Firm's control. During the Construction Phase, the Design-Build Firm shall provide updates to the County every thirty (30) days, on the first (1st) of each calendar month.
- 4) The Design-Build Firm shall keep such full and detailed accounts as may be necessary for proper financial management under this Agreement. The system shall be satisfactory to the County, which shall be afforded access to all of the Design-Build Firm's records, books, correspondence, instructions, drawings, receipts, vouchers, memoranda, and similar data relating to this Agreement. The Design-Build Firm shall preserve all such records for a period of three (3) years after the final payment or longer where required by law. All such records shall be subject to public disclosure under Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, the Florida Public Records Law. Failure to maintain or disclose such documents may result in the termination of this Agreement by the County. The Design-Build Firm shall require its subcontractors to comply with the records retention requirements of this paragraph.

D. Royalties and Patents

1) The Design-Build Firm shall pay all royalties and license fees for materials, methods, and systems incorporated in the Work. It shall defend all suits or claims for infringement of any patent rights and shall hold the County harmless from loss on account thereof except when a particular design process or product is specified by the County. In such case the Design-Build Firm shall be responsible for such loss only if it has reason to believe that the design, process, or product so specified is an infringement of a patent, and fails to give such information promptly to the County.

E. Warranties and Completion

In addition to the warranty set forth in Section 20, General Conditions:

- 1) The Design-Build Firm will secure required certificates of inspection, testing, or approval and deliver them to the County.
- 2) The Design-Build Firm will collect all written warranties and equipment manuals and deliver them to the County.
- 3) The Design-Build Firm, in coordination with the County's maintenance personnel, will be responsible for the commissioning of utilities and the operations of the Project's systems and equipment, and will assist in their initial start-up and testing.

SECTION 3. CONTRACT AMOUNT

In consideration of the faithful performance by Design-Build Firm of the covenants in this Agreement to the full satisfaction and acceptance of County, County agrees to pay, or cause to be paid, to Design-Build Firm in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and Price Proposal Form (Exhibit "P") the following Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) amount for the Project (herein "Contract Amount"): Three Million Eighteen Thousand Eleven Dollars and No Cents (\$3,018,011.00) of which Two Hundred Thirty-Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (\$232,500.00), is identified as the portion of the price associated with the Design Phase. The Design Phase portion of the price shall not exceed (3.5%) of the GMP.

SECTION 4. <u>DESIGN-BUILD FIRM FEES</u>

- A. <u>Design/Pre-Construction Phase Fee.</u> For the performance of the design services set forth herein and for profit and overhead related to these services, a total fee of \$232,500.00, which includes the additional Design Fee amount referenced in the correspondence attached as Exhibit "Q", shall be paid to the Design-Build Firm.
- B. <u>Construction Phase Fee.</u> Prior to commencement of the Construction Phase of the Project, the County will direct the Design-Build Firm in writing to proceed with the Construction Phase. The Construction Phase Fee shall be paid in monthly payments pursuant to the provisions set forth in Section 3 of the General Terms and Conditions.

Design-Build Firm's Exclusive Remedy: In the event the construction Substantial or Final Completion date is extended, regardless of whether delay is caused by any act or neglect of the County, or is attributable to the County, the Design-Build Firm's sole and exclusive remedy is an extension of the construction completion date.

C. <u>Overhead and Profit for the Construction Phase.</u> For overhead, profit, and general expenses of any kind for services provided during and related to the Construction

Phase of the Project, the fee shall be \$ 2,785,511.00, and shall be paid proportionally to the ratio of the cost of the Work in place, and less retainage as it bears on the latest estimate of the total construction cost or to the GMP or to the County's Construction Budget, whichever is less. The balance of the fee shall be paid when construction of the Project is finally completed and occupancy of the Project accepted by the County as provided in this Agreement. If construction is authorized only for a part of a phase of the Project, the fee paid shall be proportionate to the amount of Work authorized by the County. The Overhead and Profit for the Construction Phase shall be negotiated based on the design and set forth in Exhibit "J" (Schedule of Project Fees).

SECTION 5. BONDS

- A. Design-Build Firm shall provide Performance and Payment Bonds, in the form prescribed in Exhibit "B", in the amount of one hundred percent (100%) of the Contract Amount, the costs of which to be paid by Design-Build Firm. The Performance and Payment Bonds shall be underwritten by a surety authorized to do business in the State of Florida and otherwise acceptable to County; provided, however, the surety shall be rated as "A-" (excellent) or better and Class "V" or higher rating as to financial size category and the amount required shall not exceed two percent (2%) of the reported policy holders surplus, all as reported in the most current Best Key Rating Guide, published by A.M. Best Company, Inc. of 75 Fulton Street, New York, New York 10038.
- B. If the surety for any bond furnished by Design-Build Firm is declared bankrupt, becomes insolvent, its right to do business is terminated in the State of Florida, or it ceases to meet the requirements imposed by the Contract Document, the Design-Build Firm shall, within five (5) calendar days thereafter, substitute another bond and surety, both of which shall be subject to the County's approval. Failure by the Design-Build Firm to maintain its bonds in full force and effect at all times, including the warranty period, shall be grounds for termination of this Contract.
- C. Per §255.05, Florida Statutes, the Design-Build Firm shall be required to execute and record the Performance and Payment bonds. The Bonds must state the name and principal business address of both the Principal and the Surety and a description of the Project sufficient to identify it.

SECTION 6. <u>CONTRACT TIME AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES</u>

A. Time is of the essence in the performance of the Work under this Agreement.

Design-Build Firm shall commence the Work within <u>Five (5)</u> calendar days from the Commencement Date, established in each Phase's Notice to Proceed. No Work shall be performed at the Project site prior to such Commencement Dates. Design-Build Firm shall provide <u>Forty-eight (48)</u> hours notice prior to beginning the Work. The Work shall be substantially completed within <u>Two Hundred Seventy (270)</u> calendar days from the Commencement Date. The Work shall be fully completed and deemed ready by the County for final completion within <u>Thirty (30)</u> calendar days from the Substantial Completion Date.

The Contract Time shall be the time period from the Commencement Date to the date of final completion totaling **Three Hundred (300)** calendar days (herein "Contract Time").

- B. County and Design-Build Firm recognize that, since time is of the essence for this Agreement, the County will suffer financial loss if the Work is not substantially completed within the time specified. Should Design-Build Firm fail to substantially complete the Work within the time period noted above, County shall be entitled to assess, as liquidated damages, but not as a penalty, Three Thousand Dollars (\$3,000.00) for each calendar day thereafter until Substantial Completion is achieved. The Project shall be deemed to be substantially completed by the County on the date that the County's Project Manager certifies in writing that the construction of the Project, or specified part thereof, is sufficiently completed in accordance with the Contract Documents, so that the Project or specified part can be utilized for the purposes for which it is intended. Along with such certification, the Architect shall compile a "punch list" of any remaining exceptions that do not adversely affect the use of the Project. Completion of these items will be required prior to final payment as provided herein.
- C. Design-Build Firm hereby expressly waives and relinquishes any right which it may have to seek to characterize the above noted liquidated damages as a penalty, which the parties agree represents a fair and reasonable estimate of the County's actual damages at the time of contracting if Design-Build Firm fails to substantially complete the Work in accordance with the progress schedule.
- D. When any period of time is referenced to by days herein, it shall be computed to exclude the first day and include the last day of such period. If the last day of any such period falls on a Saturday or Sunday or on a day made a legal holiday by the law of the applicable jurisdiction, such day shall be omitted from the computation, and the last day shall become the next succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday.

SECTION 7. <u>EXHIBITS INCORPORATED</u>

The following documents which may be delivered or issued on or after the Effective Date of the Agreement, are expressly agreed to be incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement.

Exhibit A: General Terms and Conditions

Exhibit B: Form of Performance and Payment Bonds

Exhibit C: Insurance Requirements
Exhibit D: Form of Release and Affidavit
Exhibit E: Form of Application for Payment

Exhibit F: Form of Change Order

Exhibit G: Owner Direct Purchases (Supplementary Conditions)

Exhibit H: Contract Definitions
Exhibit I: Design Criteria Package
Exhibit J: Schedule of Project Fees

Exhibit K: Approved GMP Drawings and Specifications



Page 7 of 75

Exhibit L: Design/Pre-Construction Phase Schedule of Values

Exhibit M: Construction Phase Schedule of Values
Exhibit N: Design-Build Firm Project Personnel Roster

Exhibit O: Project Schedule Exhibit P: Price Proposal Form

Exhibit Q: Letter for Additional Design Fee

SECTION 8. NOTICES

A. All notices required or made pursuant to this Agreement by the Design-Build Firm to the County shall be in writing and delivered by hand or by United States Postal Service Department, first class mail, postage pre-paid, return receipt requested, addressed to the following:

Michael Mullin, Interim County Manager Nassau County Board of County Commissioners 96135 Nassau Place, Suite 1 Yulee, Florida 32097

B. All notices required or made pursuant to this Agreement by County to Design-Build Firm shall be made in writing and shall be delivered by hand or by United States Postal Service Department, first class mail, postage pre-paid, return receipt requested, addressed to the following:

C.C. Borden Construction, Inc. 1019 Rosselle Street Jacksonville, FL 32204 Attention: Camille Borden

C. Either party may change its above noted address by giving written notice to the other party in accordance with the requirements of this Section.

SECTION 9. MODIFICATION

No modification or change to the Agreement shall be valid or binding upon the parties unless in writing and executed by the party or parties intended to be bound by it.

SECTION 10. <u>SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS</u>

Subject to other provisions hereof, the Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the successors and assigns of the parties to the Agreement.

SECTION 11. GOVERNING LAW

Page **8** of **75**

The Agreement shall be interpreted under and its performance governed by the laws of the State of Florida, and the Parties stipulate venue for matters relating to the subject of this Agreement shall be in the County of Nassau.

SECTION 12. NO WAIVER

The failure of the County to enforce at any time or for any period of time any one or more of the provisions of the Agreement shall not be construed to be and shall not be a waiver of any such provision or provisions or of its right thereafter to enforce each and every such provision.

SECTION 13. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

Each of the Parties hereto agrees and represents that the Agreement comprises the full and entire agreement between the parties affecting the Work contemplated, and no other agreement or understanding of any nature concerning the same has been entered into or will be recognized, and that all negotiations, acts, Work performed, or payments made prior to the execution hereof shall be deemed merged in, integrated and superseded by the Agreement.

SECTION 14. SEVERABILITY

Should any provision of the Agreement be determined by a court to be unenforceable, such a determination shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other section or part thereof.

SECTION 15. PUBLIC RECORDS

The County is a public agency subject to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. IF THE VENDOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE VENDOR'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT (904) 530-6250, DMOODY@NASSAUCOUNTYFL.COM, 96161 NASSAU PLACE, YULEE, FLORIDA 32097. Under this agreement, to the extent that the Vendor is providing services to the County, and pursuant to section 119.0701, Florida Statutes, the Vendor shall:

- A. Keep and maintain public records required by the public agency to perform the service.
- B. Upon request from the public agency's custodian of public records, provide the public agency with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in this chapter or as otherwise provided by law.
- C. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for

Page **9** of **75**

the duration of the contract term and following completion of the contract if the Vendor does not transfer the records to the public agency.

D. Upon completion of the contract, transfer, at no cost, to the public agency all public records in possession of the Vendor or keep and maintain public records required by the public agency to perform the service. If the Vendor transfers all public records to the public agency upon completion of the contract, the Vendor shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If the Vendor keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the contract, the Vendor shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored electronically must be provided to the public agency, upon request from the public agency's custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the public agency.

SECTION 16. REQUEST FOR RECORDS; NONCOMPLIANCE

- A. A request to inspect or copy public records relating to a public agency's contract for services must be made directly to the public agency. If the public agency does not possess the requested records, the public agency shall immediately notify the Vendor of the request, and the Vendor must provide the records to the public agency or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time.
- B. If a Vendor does not comply with the public agency's request for records, the public agency shall enforce the contract provisions in accordance with the contract.
- C. A Vendor who fails to provide the public records to the public agency within a reasonable time may be subject to penalties under section 119.10, Florida Statutes.

[Remainder of this page intentionally left blank]

•	•	. •	1		
l۳	111	110	als	1	
			118	١.	

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the date(s) indicated below.

	ssau county, FLORIDA ough its duly authorized Bo		subdivision of the State of Florida acting ity Commissioners.
DUL	Y EXECUTED this	_ day of	, 2018.
			OARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS IASSAU COUNTY, FLORIDA
			AT EDWARDS s: Chairman
ATTEST A SIGNATUR	S TO CHAIRMAN'S RE:		
JOHN A. C Its: Ex-Offic	RAWFORD cio Clerk	_	
Approved a Attorney:	as to form by the Nassau C	ounty	
MICHAEL	MULLIN	_	
		C.C. Bo	rden Construction, Inc.:
ATTEST:	Corporate Secretary	By:(I	Name)
Ву:	Secretary	Its: Pres	ident
[CORPORA	ATE SEAL]	Date:	

Initials____

EXHIBIT "A"

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. INTENT OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

- 1.1. It is the intent of the Contract Documents to describe a functionally complete project (or portion thereof) to be constructed in accordance with the Contract Documents. Any work, materials or equipment that may reasonably be inferred from the Contract Documents as being required to produce the intended result shall be supplied whether or not specifically called for. When words which have a well-known technical or trade meaning are used to describe work, materials or equipment, such words shall be interpreted in accordance with that meaning. Reference to standard specifications, manuals or codes of any technical society, organization or association or to the laws or regulations of any governmental authority having jurisdiction over the Project, whether such reference be specific or by implication, shall mean the latest standard specification, manual, code, law or regulation in affect at the time the Work is performed, except as may be otherwise specifically stated herein.
- 1.2. If during the performance of the Work Design-Build Firm discovers a conflict, error or discrepancy in the Contract Documents, Design-Build Firm immediately shall report same to the County in writing and before proceeding with the Work affected thereby shall obtain a written interpretation or clarification from the Design-Build Firm's Architect/Engineer. Design-Build Firm shall take field measurements and verify field conditions and shall carefully compare such field measurements and conditions and other information known to Design-Build Firm with the Contract Documents before commencing any portion of the Work.
- 1.3. Drawings are intended to show general arrangements, design and extent of Work and are not intended to serve as shop drawings. Specifications are separated into divisions for convenience of reference only and shall not be interpreted as establishing divisions for the Work, trades, subcontracts, or extent of any part of the Work. In the event of a discrepancy between or among the drawings, specifications of other Contract Document provisions, Design-Build Firm shall be required to comply with the provision which is the more restrictive or stringent requirement upon the Design-Build Firm, as determined by its Architect/Engineer. Unless otherwise specifically mentioned, all anchors, bolts, screws, fittings, fillers, hardware, accessories, trim and other parts required in connection with any portion of the Work to make a complete, serviceable, finished and first quality installation shall be furnished and installed as part of the Work, whether or not called for by the Contract Documents.

2. INVESTIGATION AND UTILITIES

- 2.1 Design-Build Firm shall have the sole responsibility of satisfying itself concerning the nature and location of the Work and the general and local conditions, and particularly, but without limitation, with respect to the following: those affecting transportation, access, disposal, handling and storage of materials; availability and quality of labor; water and electric power; availability and condition of roads; work area; living facilities; climatic conditions and seasons; physical conditions at the work-site and the Project area as a whole; topography and ground surface conditions; nature and quality of the surface materials to be encountered; equipment and facilities needed preliminary to and during performance of the Work; and all other costs associated with such performance. The failure of Design-Build Firm to acquaint itself with any applicable conditions shall not relieve Design-Build Firm from any of its responsibilities to perform under the Contract Documents, nor shall it be considered the basis for any claim for additional time or compensation.
- 2.2. Design-Build Firm shall locate all existing roadways, railways, drainage facilities and utility services above, upon, or under the Project site, said roadways, railways, drainage facilities and utilities being referred to in this Section 2 as the "Utilities". Design-Build Firm shall contact the owners of all Utilities to determine the necessity for relocating or temporarily interrupting any Utilities during the construction of the Project. Design-Build Firm shall schedule and coordinate its Work around any such relocation or temporary service interruption. Design-Build Firm shall be responsible for properly shoring, supporting and protecting all Utilities at all times during the course of the Work.

3. PROGRESS PAYMENTS FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE

- 3.1. Prior to submitting its first Application for Payment, Design-Build Firm shall submit to County, for its review and approval, a schedule of values based upon the Contract Price, listing the major elements of the Work and the dollar value for each element. After its approval by the County, this schedule of values shall be used as the basis for the Design-Build Firm's Applications for Payment. This schedule shall be updated and submitted along with a completed and notarized copy of the Application for Payment form attached to the Agreement as Exhibit "E".
- 3.2. Prior to submitting its first Monthly Application for Payment, Design-Build Firm shall submit to County a complete list of all its proposed subcontractors and materialmen, showing the work and materials involved and the dollar amount of each proposed subcontract and purchase order. The first Application for Payment shall be submitted no earlier than thirty (30) days after Commencement Date of construction.
- 3.3. If payment is requested on the basis of materials and equipment not incorporated into the Project, but delivered and suitably stored at the site or at another location agreed to by the County in writing, the Application for Payment shall also be accompanied by a bill of sale, invoice or other documentation warranting that upon payment by County, the County shall receive the materials and equipment free and clear of all liens,



charges, security interests and encumbrances, together with evidence that the materials and equipment are covered by appropriate property insurance and other arrangements to protect County's interest therein, all of which shall be subject to the County's prior written approval.

3.4. Design-Build Firm shall submit its Applications for Payment to the County on or before the 25th day of each month for work performed during the previous month. Invoices received after the 25th day of each month shall be considered for payment as part of the next month's application. Within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of each Application for Payment, the County shall either: (1) indicate approval of the requested payment; (2) indicate approval of only a portion of the requested payment, stating in writing the reasons therefore; or (3) return the Application for Payment to the Design-Build Firm indicating, in writing, the reason for refusing to approve payment. In the event of a total or partial denial of the Application for Payment, the Design-Build Firm may make the necessary corrections and resubmit the Application for Payment for reconsideration within ten (10) calendar days of receiving notice of refusal.

If re-submittal of the Application for Payment is refused, in whole or in part, the Design-Build Firm may submit a written request to the County Manager for an administrative decision within two (2) business days of receiving notice of refusal. Upon receiving a timely request, an administrative decision shall be rendered within ten (10) calendar days with written notification provided to the Design-Build Firm.

The County shall, within twenty (20) business days after County approval of an Application for Payment, pay the Design-Build Firm the amounts so approved. Provided, however, in no event shall the County be obligated to pay an amount greater than that portion of the Application for Payment approved by the County.

- 3.5. Except for applications for payment for work performed pursuant to Section 2.A. of the Agreement, relating to the Design Phase, County shall retain ten percent (10%) of the gross amount of each monthly payment request or ten percent (10%) of the portion thereof approved by the County for payment, whichever is less, up to fifty percent (50%) completion. Thereafter, if on schedule, the County shall retain five percent (5%) of the gross amount of each payment request. Such sum shall be accumulated and not released to Design-Build Firm until final payment is due. Any interim interest on such sums shall accrue to County.
- 3.6. Monthly payments to Design-Build Firm shall in no way imply approval or acceptance of Design-Build Firm's work.
- 3.7. Each Application for Payment shall be accompanied by Release and Affidavit, in the form attached as Exhibit "D", showing that all materials, labor, equipment and other bills associated with that portion of the Work payment is being requested or have been paid in full. The County shall not be required to make payment until and unless these affidavits are furnished by Design-Build Firm.

Initials

4. PAYMENTS WITHHELD

The County may decline to approve any Application for Payment, or portions thereof, because of subsequently discovered evidence or subsequent inspections. The County may nullify the whole or any part of any approval for payment previously issued and County may withhold any payments otherwise due Design-Build Firm under this Agreement or any other agreement between County and Design-Build Firm, to such extent as may be necessary in the County's opinion to protect it from loss because of: (a) defective Work not remedied; (b) third party claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of such claims; (c) failure of Design-Build Firm to make payment properly to subcontractors or for labor, materials or equipment; (d) reasonable doubt that the Work can be completed for the unpaid balance of the Contract Amount; (e) reasonable indication that the Work will not be completed within the Contract Time; (f) unsatisfactory prosecution of the Work by the Design-Build Firm; or (g) any other material breach of the Contract Documents. If these conditions are not remedied or removed, County may, after three (3) days written notice, rectify the same at Design-Build Firm's expense. County also may offset against any sums due Design-Build Firm the amount of any liquidated or un-liquidated obligations of Design-Build Firm to County, whether relating to or arising out of this Agreement or any other agreement between Design-Build Firm and County.

5. FINAL PAYMENT

- 5.1. County shall make final payment to Design-Build Firm within thirty (30) calendar days after the Work is finally inspected and accepted by County in accordance with Section 19.1 herein provided.
- 5.2. Design-Build Firm's acceptance of final payment shall constitute a full waiver of any and all claims by Design-Build Firm against County arising out of this Agreement or otherwise relating to the Project, except those previously made in writing and identified by Design-Build Firm as unsettled at the time of the final Application for Payment. Neither the acceptance of the Work nor payment by County shall be deemed to be a waiver of County's right to enforce any obligations of Design-Build Firm hereunder or to the recovery of damages for defective Work not discovered by the County at the time of final inspection.

6. SUBMITTALS AND SUBSTITUTIONS

6.1. Design-Build Firm shall carefully examine the Contract Documents for all requirements for approval of materials to be submitted such as shop drawings, data, test results, schedules and samples. Design-Build Firm shall submit all such materials at its own expense and in such form as required by the Contract Documents in sufficient time to prevent any delay in the delivery of such materials and the installation thereof.

- 6.2. Whenever materials or equipment are specified or described in the Contract Documents by using the name of a proprietary item or the name of a particular supplier, the naming of the item is intended to establish the type, function and quality required. Unless the name is followed by words indicating that no substitution is permitted, materials or equipment of other suppliers may be accepted by County if sufficient information is submitted by Design-Build Firm to allow the County to determine that the material or equipment proposed is equivalent or equal to that named. Requests for review of substitute items of material and equipment will not be accepted by County from anyone other than Design-Build Firm and all such requests must be submitted by Design-Build Firm to County within thirty (30) calendar days after Notice of Award is received by Design-Build Firm.
- 6.3. If Design-Build Firm wishes to furnish or use a substitute item of material or equipment, Design-Build Firm shall make application to the County for acceptance thereof, certifying that the proposed substitute shall perform adequately the functions and achieve the results called for by the general design, be similar and of equal substance to that specified and be suited to the same use as that specified. The application shall state that the evaluation and acceptance of the proposed substitute will not prejudice Design-Build Firm's achievement of substantial completion on time, whether or not acceptance of the substitute for use in the Work will require a change in any of the Contract Documents (or in the provisions of any other direct contract with County for the Project) to adapt the design to the proposed substitute and whether or not incorporation or use by the substitute in connection with the Work is subject to payment of any license fee or royalty. All variations of the proposed substitute from that specified will be identified in the application and available maintenance, repair and replacement service shall be indicated. The application also shall contain an itemized estimate of all costs that will result directly or indirectly from acceptance of such substitute, including costs for redesign and claims of other Design-Build Firms affected by the resulting change, all of which shall be considered by the County in evaluating the proposed substitute. The County may require Design-Build Firm to furnish at Design-Build Firm's expense additional data about the proposed substitute.
- 6.4. If a specific means, method, technique, sequence or procedure of construction is indicated in or required by the Contract Documents, Design-Build Firm may furnish or utilize a substitute means, method, sequence, technique or procedure of construction acceptable to the County, if Design-Build Firm submits sufficient information to allow the County to determine that the substitute proposed is equivalent to that indicated or required by the Contract Documents. The procedures for submission to and review by the County shall be the same as those provided herein for substitute materials and equipment.
- 6.5. The County shall be allowed a reasonable time within which to evaluate each proposed substitute. The County shall be the sole judge of acceptability, and no substitute will be ordered, installed or utilized without the County's prior written acceptance which shall be evidenced by either a Change Order or an approved Shop Drawing. The County may require Design-Build Firm to furnish at Design-Build Firm's expense a special performance guarantee or other surety with respect to any substitute.



7. DAILY REPORTS, AS-BUILTS AND MEETINGS

- 7.1. Unless waived in writing by County, during the Construction Phase, Design-Build Firm shall complete and submit to the County on a weekly basis a daily log of the Design-Build Firm's work for the preceding week in a format approved by the County. The daily log shall document all activities of Design-Build Firm at the Project site including, but not limited to, the following:
 - 7.1.1. Weather conditions showing the high and low temperatures during work hours, the amount of precipitation received on the Project site, and any other weather conditions which adversely affect the Work;
 - 7.1.2. Soil conditions which adversely affect the Work;
 - 7.1.3. The hours of operation by Design-Build Firm's and subcontractor's personnel;
 - 7.1.4. The number of Design-Build Firm's and subcontractor's personnel present and working at the Project site, by subcontract and trade;
 - 7.1.5. All equipment present at the Project site, description of equipment use and designation of time equipment was used (specifically indicating any down time);
 - 7.1.6. Description of Work being performed at the Project site;
 - 7.1.7. Any unusual or special occurrences at the Project site;
 - 7.1.8. Materials received at the Project site; and
 - 7.1.9. A list of all visitors to the Project site.
 - 7.1.10 Safety Meetings

The daily log shall not constitute nor take the place of any notice required to be given by Design-Build Firm to County pursuant to the Contract Documents.



- Design-Build Firm shall maintain in a safe place at the Project site one record 7.2. copy of the Contract Documents, as well as all shop drawings and other Design-Build Firm submittals and all written interpretations and clarifications issued by the County, in good order and annotated to show all changes made during construction. The annotated drawings shall be continuously updated by the Design-Build Firm throughout the prosecution of the Work to accurately reflect all field changes that are made to adapt the Work to field conditions, changes resulting from Change Orders, Work Directive Changes and Field Orders, and all concealed and buried installations of piping, conduit and utility services. All buried and concealed items, both inside and outside the Project site, shall be accurately located on the annotated drawings as to depth and in relationship to not less than two (2) permanent features (e.g. interior or exterior wall faces). The annotated drawings shall be clean and all changes, corrections and dimensions shall be given in a neat and legible manner in a contrasting color. The "As-Built" record documents, together with all approved samples and a counterpart of all approved shop drawings shall be available to County for reference. Upon completion of the Work, and as a condition precedent to Design-Build Firm's entitlement to final payment, these "As-Built" record documents, samples and shop drawings shall be delivered to County by Design-Build Firm for County.
- 7.3. Design-Build Firm shall keep all records and supporting documentation which concern or relate to the Work hereunder for a minimum of five (5) years from the date of termination of this Agreement or the date the Project is completed, whichever is later. County, or any duly authorized agents or representatives of County, shall have the right to audit, inspect and copy all such records and documentation as often as they deem necessary during the period of this Agreement and during the five (5) year period noted above; provided, however, such activity shall be conducted only during normal business hours.

8. CONTRACT TIME AND TIME EXTENSIONS

- 8.1. Design-Build Firm shall diligently pursue the completion of the Work and coordinate the Work being done on the Project by its Architect/Engineer, subcontractors and materialmen, as well as coordinating its Work with all work of others at the Project Site, so that its Work or the work of others shall not be delayed or impaired by any act or omission of Design-Build Firm. Design-Build Firm shall be solely responsible for all construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures, as well as coordination of all portions of the Work under the Contract Documents.
- 8.2. Should Design-Build Firm be obstructed or delayed in the prosecution of or completion of the Work as a result of unforeseeable causes beyond the control of Design-Build Firm, and not due to its fault or neglect, including but not restricted to acts of God or of the public enemy, acts of government, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine regulations, strikes or lockouts, Design-Build Firm shall notify the County in writing within forty-eight (48) hours after the commencement of such delay, stating the cause or causes thereof, or be deemed to have waived any right which Design-Build Firm may have had to request a time extension.

8.3. No interruption, interference, inefficiency, suspension or delay in the commencement or progress of the Work from any cause whatever, including those for which County may be responsible, in whole or in part, shall relieve Design-Build Firm of its duty to perform or give rise to any right to damages or additional compensation from County. Design-Build Firm expressly acknowledges and agrees that it shall receive no damages for delay. Design-Build Firm's sole remedy, if any, against County will be the right to seek an extension to the Contract Time; provided, however, the granting of any such time extension shall not be a condition precedent to the aforementioned "No Damage for Delay" provision. This paragraph shall expressly apply to claims for early completion, as well as to claims based on late completion.

9. **CHANGES IN THE WORK**

- 9.1. County shall have the right at any time during the progress of the Work to increase or decrease the Work. Promptly after being notified of a change, Design-Build Firm shall submit an itemized estimate of any cost or time increases or savings it foresees as a result of the change. Except in an emergency endangering life or property, or as expressly set forth herein, no addition or changes to the Work shall be made except upon written order of County, and County shall not be liable to the Design-Build Firm for any increased compensation without such written order. No officer, employee or agent of County is authorized to direct any extra or changed work orally.
- 9.2. A Change Order, in the form attached as Exhibit "F" to this Agreement, shall be issued and executed promptly after an agreement is reached between Design-Build Firm and County concerning the requested changes. Design-Build Firm shall promptly perform changes authorized by duly executed Change Orders. The Contract Amount and Contract Time shall be adjusted in the Change Order in the manner as County and Design-Build Firm shall mutually agree.
- 9.3. If County and Design-Build Firm are unable to agree on a Change Order for the requested change, Design-Build Firm shall, nevertheless, promptly perform the change as directed by County in a written Work Directive Change. In that event, the Contract Amount and Contract Time shall be adjusted as directed by County. If Design-Build Firm disagrees with the County's adjustment determination, Design-Build Firm must make a claim pursuant to Section 10 of these General Conditions or else be deemed to have waived any claim on this matter it might otherwise have had.

- 9.4. In the event a requested change results in an increase to the Contract Amount, as to design the amount of the increase shall be based upon the standard hourly billing rates, according to classification of the Design-Build Firm's Architect/Engineer plus expenses to be charged at actual cost. As to the construction, the amount of the increase shall be limited to the Design-Build Firm's reasonable direct labor and material costs and reasonable actual equipment costs as a result of the change (including allowance for labor burden costs) plus a maximum ten percent (10%) markup for all overhead and profit. In the event such change Work is performed by a Subcontractor, a maximum ten percent (10%) markup for all overhead and profit for all Subcontractors' and sub-subcontractors' direct labor and material costs and actual equipment costs shall be permitted, with a maximum five percent (5%) markup thereon by the Design-Build Firm for all of its overhead and profit, for a total maximum markup of fifteen percent (15%). All compensation due Design-Build Firm and any Subcontractor or sub-subcontractor for field and home office overhead is included in the markups noted above.
- 9.5. County shall have the right to conduct an audit of Design-Build Firm's books and records to verify the accuracy of the Design-Build Firm's claim with respect to Design-Build Firm's costs associated with any Change Order.
- 9.6. The County shall have authority to order minor changes in the Work not involving an adjustment to the Contract Amount or an extension to the Contract Time and not inconsistent with the intent of the Contract Documents. Such changes may be affected by Field Order or by other written order. Such changes shall be binding on the Design-Build Firm.

10. CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

- 10.1. A Claim is a demand or assertion by one of the parties seeking an adjustment or interpretation of the terms of the Contract Documents, payment of money, extension of time or other relief with respect to the terms of the Contract Documents. The term "Claim" also includes other disputes and matters in question between County and Design-Build Firm arising out of or relating to the Contract Documents. The responsibility to substantiate a Claim shall rest with the party making the Claim.
- 10.2. Claims by the Design-Build Firm shall be made in writing to the County within forty-eight (48) hours after the first day of the event giving rise to such Claim or else the Design-Build Firm shall be deemed to have waived the Claim. Written supporting data shall be submitted to the County within fifteen (15) calendar days after the occurrence of the event, unless the County grants additional time in writing, or else the Design-Build Firm shall be deemed to have waived the Claim. All Claims shall be priced in accordance with the provisions of Subsection 9.4.
- 10.3. The Design-Build Firm shall proceed diligently with its performance as directed by the County, regardless of any pending Claim, action, suit or administrative proceeding, unless otherwise agreed to by the County in writing. County shall continue to make payments in accordance with the Contract Documents during the pendency of any

Page 20 of 75

Claim.

11. OTHER WORK

- 11.1. County may perform other work related to the Project at the site by County's own forces, have other work performed by utility owners or let other direct contracts. If the fact that such other work is to be performed is not noted in the Contract Documents, notice thereof will be given to Design-Build Firm. If Design-Build Firm believes that such performance will involve additional expense to Design-Build Firm or require additional time, Design-Build Firm shall send written notice of that fact to County within forty-eight (48) hours of being notified of the other work. If the Design-Build Firm fails to send the above required forty-eight (48) hour notice, the Design-Build Firm will be deemed to have waived any rights it otherwise may have had to seek an extension to the Contract Time or adjustment to the Contract Amount.
- 11.2. Design-Build Firm shall afford each utility owner and other Design-Build Firm (or County, if County is performing the additional work with County's employees) proper and safe access to the site and a reasonable opportunity for the introduction and storage of materials and equipment and the execution of such work and shall properly connect and coordinate its Work with theirs. Design-Build Firm shall do all cutting, fitting and patching of the Work that may be required to make its several parts come together properly and integrate with such other work. Design-Build Firm shall not endanger any work of others by cutting, excavating or otherwise altering their work and will only cut or alter their work with the written consent of the County and the others whose work will be affected.
- 11.3. If any part of Design-Build Firm's Work depends for proper execution or results upon the work of any other Design-Build Firm or utility owner (or County), Design-Build Firm shall inspect and promptly report to County in writing any delays, defects or deficiencies in such work that render it unavailable or unsuitable for such proper execution and results. Design-Build Firm's failure to report will constitute an acceptance of the other work as fit and proper for integration with Design-Build Firm's Work.

12. INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE

12.1. Design-Build Firm shall pay on behalf of or indemnify and hold harmless the County and its, agents, officers and employees from all liabilities, damages, losses, and costs, including attorneys' fees, incurred by County to the extent caused by the negligence, recklessness, or intentional wrongful misconduct of Design-Build Firm or by any person, firm or corporation (including but not limited to the Architect/Engineer) to whom any portion of the Work is subcontracted by Design-Build Firm or resulting from the use by Design-Build Firm, or by any one for whom Design-Build Firm is legally liable, of any materials, tools, machinery or other property of County. Design-Build Firm's obligation as provided herein shall be limited to its proportionate share of liability to the extent caused by the negligence, recklessness or intentional wrongful misconduct of Design-Build Firm or by any person, firm or corporation to whom any portion of the Work is subcontracted by Design-Build Firm, and Design-Build Firm shall not be required to pay on behalf of or indemnify



Page 21 of 75

and hold harmless County where County's negligence, recklessness or intentional wrongful misconduct is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be the sole cause of its liabilities, damages, losses and costs, including attorney's fees and paralegal fees.

County and Design-Build Firm agree one percent (1%) of the Contract Amount paid by County to Design-Build Firm shall be given as separate consideration for this indemnification, and any other indemnification of County by Design-Build Firm provided for within the Contract Documents, the sufficiency of such separate consideration being acknowledged by Design-Build Firm by Design-Build Firm's acceptance and execution of the Agreement.

Design Build Firm agrees that such indemnification by Design Build Firm relating to any matter which is the subject of this Agreement shall extend throughout the term of this Agreement and any applicable statutes of limitations thereafter. The Design-Build Firm's obligation shall not be limited by, or in any way to, any insurance coverage or by any provision in or exclusion or omission from any policy of insurance.

- 12.2. Design-Build Firm shall obtain and carry, at all times during its performance under the Contract Documents, insurance of the types and in the amounts set forth in Exhibit C to the Agreement. All insurance policies shall be from responsible companies duly authorized to do business in the State of Florida and/or responsible risk retention group insurance companies or trusts which are registered with the State of Florida. Foreign or off-shore insurance carriers are not acceptable for work under this contract unless admitted to the State of Florida. All commercial insurance carriers providing the Design-Build Firm with required insurance shall be rated with a minimum financial size category of VII according to the AM Best Rating Guide, latest edition. An A or better Best Rating is "preferred"; however, other ratings if "Secure Best Ratings" may be considered. Within ten (10) calendar days after Notice of Award is received by Design-Build Firm and prior to the commencement of work, Design-Build Firm shall provide County with properly executed Certificates of Insurance to evidence Design-Build Firm's compliance with the insurance requirements of the Contract Documents. Said Certificates of Insurance shall be on forms approved by County, such as "Acord Form 25". The Certificates of Insurance shall be personally, manually signed by the authorized representatives of the insurance company/companies shown on the Certificates of Insurance, with proof that they are authorized representatives thereof. Certificates of Insurance shall be mailed to Nassau County in care of: Contract Manager, 96135 Nassau Place, Suite 6, Yulee, Florida 32097. In addition, certified, true and exact copies of all insurance policies required hereunder shall be provided to County, on a timely basis, when requested by County.
- 12.3. The Certificates of Insurance and required insurance policies shall contain provisions that thirty (30) days prior written notice by registered or certified mail shall be given County of any cancellation, intent not to renew, or reduction in the policies or coverages, except in the application of the aggregate limits provisions. In the event of a reduction in the aggregate limit of any policy, Design-Build Firm shall immediately take steps to have the aggregate limit reinstated to the full extent permitted under such policy.

|--|

- 12.4. All insurance coverages of the Design-Build Firm shall be primary to any insurance or self-insurance program carried by the County applicable to this Project. The acceptance by County of any Certificate of Insurance does not constitute approval or agreement by the County that the insurance requirements have been satisfied or that the insurance policy shown on the Certificate of Insurance is in compliance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. No work shall commence at the Project site unless and until the required Certificates of Insurance are received by the County.
- 12.5. Design-Build Firm shall require each of its subcontractors to procure and maintain, until the completion of the subcontractor's work, insurance of the types and to the limits specified in Exhibit "C", unless such insurance requirements for the Subcontractor is expressly waived in writing by the County. All liability insurance policies, other than professional liability, worker's compensation and employer's liability policies, obtained by Design-Build Firm to meet the requirements of the Contract Documents shall name Nassau County as an additional insured and shall contain severability of interest provisions. Nassau County shall also be designated as certificate holder with the address of 96135 Nassau Place, Suite 6, Yulee, Florida 32097. If any insurance provided pursuant to the Contract Documents expires prior to the completion of the Work, renewal Certificates of Insurance and, if requested by County, certified, true copies of the renewal policies, shall be furnished by Design-Build Firm within thirty (30) days prior to the date of expiration. Upon expiration of an insurance policy term during the course of work under the contract, succeeding insurance policies shall be consecutive to the expiring policy.
- 12.6 All liability policies shall be underwritten on the "occurrence" basis, unless otherwise approved in writing by the County Division of Risk Management. "Claims made" policies, if approved by the Risk Manager, and subsequent insurance certificates shall provide a "retro-date" which shall include the effective date of the contract. "Claims-made" renewals or carrier and policy replacements shall reflect the original "retro-date."
- 12.7. Should at any time the Design-Build Firm not maintain the insurance coverages required herein, the County may terminate the Agreement or at its sole discretion shall be authorized to purchase such coverages and charge the Design-Build Firm for such coverages purchased. The County shall be under no obligation to purchase such insurance, nor shall it be responsible for the coverages purchased or the insurance company or companies used. The decision of the County to purchase such insurance coverages shall in no way be construed to be a waiver of any of its rights under the Contract Documents.
- 12.8 Design-Build Firm shall submit to County a copy of all accident reports arising out of any personal injuries or property damages arising or alleged to have arisen on account of any work by Design-Build Firm or Subcontractor under the Contract Documents.

12.9 <u>Duty to Provide Legal Defense</u>. To the extent permitted by law, the Design-Build Firm shall pay for and provide a legal defense for County, which shall include attorneys' fees and costs, both of which will be done only if and when requested by County, for all liabilities, damages, losses, and costs as described in paragraph 12.1 above. Such payment on the behalf of the County shall be in addition to any and all other legal remedies available to the County and shall not be considered to be the County's exclusive remedy.

13. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

- 13.1 Design-Build Firm agrees to comply, at its own expense, with all federal, state and local laws, codes, statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations and requirements applicable to the Project, including but not limited to those dealing with taxation, worker's compensation, equal employment and safety. If Design-Build Firm observes that the Contract Documents are at variance therewith, it shall promptly notify County in writing. Compliance with the above laws shall include but is not limited to: (1) the Occupational Safety and Health Act, 29 CFR 1910 and 1926, respectively, General Industry Standards and Construction Industry Standards, including regulations regarding Trenching and Shoring; (2) the Florida Workers' Compensation Law, Chapter 440, Florida Statutes; (3) Rules 38F and 38I, Florida Administrative Code; and (4) Florida Department of Transportation Manual of Traffic Control and Safe Practices. Failure to adhere to the requirements of the above named laws and regulations regarding safety and traffic control shall be grounds for an immediate work stoppage, either by County staff or the Design-Build Firm, until the deficiency is corrected.
- 13.2 EMPLOYMENT ELIGIBILITY VERIFICATION (E-VERIFY): In accordance with State of Florida, Office of the Governor, Executive Order 11-116 (superseding Executive Order 11-02; Verification of Employment Status), in the event performance of this Agreement is or will be funded using state or federal funds, the CONTRACTOR must comply with the Employment Eligibility Verification Program ("E-Verify Program") developed by the federal government to verify the eligibility of individuals to work in the United States and 48 CFR 52.222-54 (as amended) is incorporated herein by reference. If applicable, in accordance with Subpart 22.18 of the Federal Acquisition Register, the CONTRACTOR must (1) enroll in the E-Verify Program, (2) use E-Verify to verify the employment eligibility of all new hires working in the United States, except if the CONTRACTOR is a state or local government, the CONTRACTOR may choose to verify only new hires assigned to the Agreement; (3) use E-Verify to verify the employment eligibility of all employees assigned to the Agreement; and (4) include these requirement in certain subcontracts, such as construction. Information on registration for and use of the E-Verify Program can be obtained via the internet at the Department of Homeland Security Web site: http://www.dhs.gov/E-Verify.

14. CLEANUP AND PROTECTIONS

14.1. Design-Build Firm agrees to keep the Project site clean at all times of debris, rubbish and waste materials arising out of the Work. At the completion of the Work, Design-Build Firm shall remove all debris, rubbish and waste materials from and about the Project

site, as well as all tools, appliances, construction equipment and machinery and surface materials, and shall leave the Project site clean and ready for occupancy by County.

14.2. Any existing surface or subsurface improvements, including, but not limited to, pavements, curbs, sidewalks, pipes, utilities, footings, structures, trees and shrubbery, not indicated in the Contract Documents to be removed or altered, shall be protected by Design-Build Firm from damage during the prosecution of the Work. Any such improvements so damaged shall be restored by Design-Build Firm to the condition equal to that existing at the time of Design-Build Firm's commencement of the Work.

15. ASSIGNMENT

15.1. Design-Build Firm shall not assign this Agreement or any part thereof, without the prior consent in writing of County. If Design-Build Firm does, with approval, assign this Agreement or any part thereof, it shall require that its assignee be bound to it and to assume toward Design-Build Firm all of the obligations and responsibilities that Design-Build Firm has assumed toward County.

16. PERMITS, LICENSES AND TAXES

- 16.1. All permits and licenses necessary for the prosecution of the Work shall be procured and paid for by Design-Build Firm. All permits or fees, including but not limited to, all license fees, permit fees, impact fees or inspection fees payable by Design-Build Firm to County have been disclosed to Design-Build Firm in the bidding documents or other request for proposal at the time the Project was let for bid. If Design-Build Firm performs any Work without obtaining, or contrary to, such permits or licenses, Design-Build Firm shall bear all costs arising therefrom. Design-Build Firm shall pay all governmental charges and inspection fees necessary for the prosecution of the Work.
- 16.2. Design-Build Firm shall pay all sales, consumer, use and other similar taxes associated with the Work or portions thereof, which are applicable during the performance of the Work.

17. TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT

17.1. Design-Build Firm shall be considered in material default of the Agreement and such default shall be considered cause for County to terminate the Agreement, in whole or in part, as further set forth in this Section, if Design-Build Firm: (1) fails to begin the Work under the Contract Documents within the time specified herein; or (2) fails to properly and timely perform the Work as directed by the County or as provided for in the approved Progress Schedule; or (3) commits errors or omissions in the performance of the architectural/engineering design or inspection services; or (4) performs the Work unsuitably or neglects or refuses to remove materials or to correct or replace such Work as may be rejected as unacceptable or unsuitable; or (5) discontinues the prosecution of the Work; or (6) fails to resume Work which has been suspended within a reasonable time after being notified to do so; or (7) becomes insolvent or is declared bankrupt, or commits any act of

Initials

bankruptcy; or (8) allows any final judgment to stand against it unsatisfied for more than ten (10) days; or (9) makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors; or (10) fails to obey any applicable codes, laws, ordinances, rules or regulations with respect to the Work; or (11) materially breaches any other provision of the Contract Documents.

- 17.2. County shall notify Design-Build Firm in writing of Design-Build Firm's default(s). If County determines that Design-Build Firm has not remedied and cured the default(s) within seven (7) calendar days following receipt by Design-Build Firm of said written notice, then County, at its option, without releasing or waiving its rights and remedies against the Design-Build Firm's sureties and without prejudice to any other right or remedy it may be entitled to hereunder or by law, may terminate Design-Build Firm's right to proceed under the Agreement, in whole or in part, and take possession of all or any portion of the Work and any materials, tools, equipment, and appliances of Design-Build Firm, take assignments of any of Design-Build Firm's subcontracts and purchase orders, and complete all or any portion of Design-Build Firm's Work by whatever means, method or agency which County, in its sole discretion, may choose.
- 17.3. If County deems any of the foregoing remedies necessary, Design-Build Firm agrees that is shall not be entitled to receive any further payments hereunder until after the Project is completed. All monies expended and all of the costs, losses, damages and extra expenses, including all management, administrative and other overhead and other direct and indirect expenses (including attorneys' fees) or damages incurred by County incident to such completion, shall be deducted from the Contract Amount, and if such expenditures exceed the unpaid balance of the Contract Amount, Design-Build Firm agrees to pay promptly to County on demand the full amount of such excess, including costs of collection, attorney's fees (including appeals) and interest thereon at the maximum legal rate of interest until paid. If the unpaid balance of the Contract Amount exceeds all such costs, expenditures and damages incurred by the County to complete the Work, such excess shall be paid to the Design-Build Firm. The amount to be paid to the Design-Build Firm or County, as the case may be, and this obligation for payment shall survive termination of the Agreement.
- 17.4. The liability of Design-Build Firm hereunder shall extend to and include the full amount of any and all sums paid, expenses and losses incurred, damages sustained, and obligations assumed by County in good faith under the belief that such payments or assumptions were necessary or required, in completing the Work and providing labor, materials, equipment, supplies, and other items therefor or re-letting the Work, in settlement, discharge or compromise of any claims, demands, suits, and judgments pertaining to or arising out of the Work hereunder.
- 17.5. If, after notice of termination of Design-Build Firm's right to proceed pursuant to this Section, it is determined for any reason that Design-Build Firm was not in default, or that its default was excusable, or that County is not entitled to the remedies against Design-Build Firm provided herein, then Design-Build Firm's remedies against County shall be the same as and limited to those afforded Design-Build Firm below under Subsection 18.1, Termination for Convenience.

17.6 If the Design-Build Firm refuses to allow public access to all documents, papers, letters, or other material subject to the provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and made or received by the Design-Build Firm in conjunction with this Agreement then the County may, without prejudice to any right or remedy and after giving the Design-Build Firm and his surety, if any, seven (7) days written notice, during which period Design-Build Firm still fails to allow access, terminate the employment of the Design-Build Firm and take possession of the site and of all materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery thereon, owned by the Design-Build Firm, and may finish the project by whatever method it may deem expedient. In such case, the Design-Build Firm shall not be entitled to receive any further payment until the Project is finished. Reasonable terminal expenses incurred by the County may be deducted from any payments left owing the Design-Build Firm (excluding monies owed the Design-Build Firm for subcontract work).

18. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE AND RIGHT OF SUSPENSION

- 18.1. County shall have the right to terminate this Agreement without cause upon seven (7) calendar days written notice to Design-Build Firm. In the event of such termination for convenience, Design-Build Firm's recovery against County shall be limited to that portion of the Contract Amount earned through the date of termination, together with any retainage withheld and reasonable termination expenses incurred, but Design-Build Firm shall not be entitled to any other or further recovery against County, including, but not limited to, damages or any anticipated profit on portions of the Work not performed.
- 18.2. County shall have the right to suspend all or any portions of the Work upon giving Design-Build Firm two (2) calendar days' prior written notice of such suspension. If all or any portion of the Work is so suspended, Design-Build Firm's sole and exclusive remedy shall be to seek an extension of time to its schedule in accordance with the procedures set forth in the Contract Documents. In no event shall the Design-Build Firm be entitled to any additional compensation or damages. Provided, however, if the ordered suspension exceeds three (3) months, the Design-Build Firm shall have the right to terminate the Agreement with respect to that portion of the Work which is subject to the ordered suspension.

19. COMPLETION

19.1. Upon receipt of written notice that the Work is ready for final inspection and acceptance and upon receipt of a final Application for Payment, the County shall promptly make such inspection and, if it finds the work acceptable and fully performed under the Contract Documents, shall promptly issue a final Certificate for Payment, stating that, on the basis of observations and inspections, the Work has been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents and that the entire balance found to be due the Design-Build Firm is due and payable. The final payment shall not become due and payable until Design-Build Firm submits: (1) the Release and Affidavit in the form attached as Exhibit "D", (2) consent of surety to final payment, (3) if required by County, other data establishing payment or satisfaction of all obligations, such as receipts, releases

and waivers of liens, arising out of the Contract Documents, to the extent and in such form as may be designated by County, and (4) a published copy of the Notice of Completion as provided for in section 19.2. County reserves the right to inspect the Work and make an independent determination as to the Work's acceptability. Unless and until the County is completely satisfied, the final payment shall not become due and payable.

19.2 After the Work is ready for final inspection and acceptance by the County, a legal advertisement must be published by the Design-Build Firm in a local newspaper of a general countywide circulation at least thirty (30) days before final payment shall be made. Example of such publication is as follows:

Legal Notice of Completion

Notice is hereby given that the undersigned Design-Build Firm has completed and has ready for acceptance by the Board of County Commissioners of Nassau County, Florida, the following construction project:

(Project Name and Address)
(· , · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
(Legal Name and Address - entity of the Design-Build Firm)

Subcontractors, materialmen, and other persons having payment claims against the Design-Build Firm relating to this project should govern themselves accordingly.

20. WARRANTY

20.1. Design-Build Firm shall obtain and assign to County all express warranties given to Design-Build Firm or any subcontractors by any material men supplying materials, equipment or fixtures to be incorporated into the Project. Design-Build Firm warrants to County that any materials and equipment furnished under the Contract Documents shall be new unless otherwise specified, and that all Work shall be of good quality, free from all defects and in conformance with the Contract Documents. Design-Build Firm further warrants to County that all materials and equipment furnished under the Contract Documents shall be applied, installed, connected, erected, used, cleaned and conditioned in accordance with the instructions of the applicable manufacturers, fabricators, suppliers or processors except as otherwise provided for in the Contract Documents. If, within one (1) year after substantial completion and acceptance, any Work is found to be defective or not in conformance with the Contract Documents, Design-Build Firm shall correct it promptly after receipt of written notice from County. Design-Build Firm shall also be responsible for and pay for replacement or repair of adjacent materials or Work, which may be damaged as a result of such replacement or repair. These warranties are in addition to those implied warranties to which County is entitled as a matter of law. The Performance Bond shall remain in full force and effect throughout the one (1) year Warranty Period.

21. TESTS AND INSPECTIONS

- 21.1. County, its respective representatives, agents and employees, and any governmental agencies with jurisdiction over the Project shall have access at all times to the Work, whether the Work is being performed on or off of the Project site, for their observation, inspection and testing. Design-Build Firm shall provide proper, safe conditions for such access. Design-Build Firm shall provide County with timely notice of readiness of the Work for all required inspections, tests or approvals.
- 21.2. If the Contract Documents or any codes, laws, ordinances, rules or regulations of any public authority having jurisdiction over the Project requires any portion of the Work to be specifically inspected, tested or approved, Design-Build Firm shall assume full responsibility therefore, pay all costs in connection therewith and furnish County the required certificates of inspection, testing or approval. All inspections, tests or approvals shall be performed in a manner and by organizations acceptable to the County.
- 21.3. If any Work that is to be inspected, tested or approved is covered without written concurrence from the County, such work must, if requested by County, be uncovered for observation. Such uncovering shall be at Design-Build Firm's expense unless Design-Build Firm has given County timely notice of Design-Build Firm's intention to cover the same and County has not acted with reasonable promptness to respond to such notice. If any Work is covered contrary to written directions from County, such Work must, if requested by County, be uncovered for County's observation and be replaced at Design-Build Firm's sole expense.
- 21.4. The County shall charge to Design-Build Firm and may deduct from any payments due Design-Build Firm all engineering and inspection expenses incurred by County in connection with any overtime work. Such overtime work consisting of any work during the construction period beyond the regular eight (8) hour day and for any work performed on Saturday, Sunday or holidays.
- 21.5. Neither observations by the County nor inspections, tests or approvals by others shall relieve Design-Build Firm from Design-Build Firm's obligations to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

22. DEFECTIVE WORK

22.1. Work not conforming to the requirements of the construction plans or Contract Documents or work conforming to the construction plans or contract documents containing errors or omissions, including, but not limited to, design flaws shall be deemed defective Work. If required by County, Design-Build Firm shall as directed, either correct all defective Work, whether or not fabricated, installed or completed, or, if the defective Work has been rejected by County, remove it from the site and replace it with undefective Work. Design-Build Firm shall bear all direct, indirect and consequential costs of such correction or removal (including, but not limited to fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys

and other professionals) made necessary thereby, and shall hold County harmless for same.

- 22.2. If the County considers it necessary or advisable that covered Work be observed by County or inspected or tested by others, Design-Build Firm, at County's request, shall uncover, expose or otherwise make available for observation, inspection or tests as County may require, that portion of the Work in question, furnishing all necessary labor, material and equipment. If it is found that such Work is defective, Design-Build Firm shall bear all direct, indirect and consequential costs of such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection and testing and of satisfactory reconstruction (including, but not limited to, fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys and other professionals), and County shall be entitled to an appropriate decrease in the Contract Amount. If, however, such Work is not found to be defective, Design-Build Firm shall be allowed an increase in the Contract Amount and/or an extension of the Contract Time, directly attributable to such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection, testing and reconstruction.
- 22.3. If any portion of the Work is defective, or Design-Build Firm fails to supply sufficient skilled workers with suitable materials or equipment, or fails to finish or perform the Work in such a way that the completed Work will conform to the Contract Documents, County may order Design-Build Firm to stop the Work, or any portion thereof, until the cause for such order has been eliminated; however, this right of County to stop the Work shall not give rise to any duty on the part of County to exercise this right for the benefit of Design-Build Firm or any other party.
- 22.4. Should the County determine, at its sole opinion, it is in the County's best interest to accept defective Work, the County may do so. Design-Build Firm shall bear all direct, indirect and consequential costs attributable to the County's evaluation of and determination to accept defective Work. If such determination is rendered prior to final payment, a Change Order shall be executed evidencing such acceptance of such defective Work, incorporating the necessary revisions in the Contract Documents and reflecting an appropriate decrease in the Contract Amount. If the County accepts such defective Work after final payment, Design-Build Firm shall promptly pay County an appropriate amount to adequately compensate County for its acceptance of the defective Work.
- 22.5. If Design-Build Firm fails, within a reasonable time after the written notice from County, to correct defective Work or to remove and replace rejected defective Work as required by County, or if Design-Build Firm fails to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, or if Design-Build Firm fails to comply with any of the provisions of the Contract Documents, County may, after seven (7) days' written notice to Design-Build Firm, correct and remedy any such deficiency. To the extent necessary to complete corrective and remedial action, County may exclude Design-Build Firm from any or all of the Project site, take possession of all or any part of the Work, and suspend Design-Build Firm's services related thereto, take possessions of Design-Build Firm's tools, appliances, construction equipment and machinery at the Project site and incorporate in the Work all

Initials

materials and equipment stored at the Project site or for which County has paid Design-Build Firm but which are stored elsewhere. Design-Build Firm shall allow County, and their respective representatives, agents, and employees such access to the Project site as may be necessary to enable County to exercise the rights and remedies under this Subsection. All direct, indirect and consequential costs of County in exercising such rights and remedies shall be charged against Design-Build Firm, and a Change Order shall be issued, incorporating the necessary revisions to the Contract Documents, including an appropriate decrease to the Contract Amount. Such direct, indirect and consequential costs shall include, but not be limited to, fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys and other professionals, all court and arbitration costs and all costs of repair and replacement of work or others destroyed or damaged by correction, removal or replacement of Design-Build Firm's defective Work. Design-Build Firm shall not be allowed an extension of the Contract Time because of any delay in performance of the Work attributable to the exercise by County of County's rights and remedies hereunder.

23. SUPERVISION AND SUPERINTENDENTS

23.1. Design-Build Firm shall supervise and direct the Work competently and efficiently, devoting such attention thereto and applying such skills and expertise as may be necessary to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. Design-Build Firm shall be responsible to see that the finished Work complies accurately with the Contract Documents. Design-Build Firm shall keep on the Work at all times during its progress a competent resident superintendent, who shall not be replaced without prior written notice to County except under extraordinary circumstances. The superintendent shall be Design-Build Firm's representative at the Project site and shall have authority to act on behalf of Design-Build Firm. All communications given to the superintendent shall be as binding as if given to the Design-Build Firm. County shall have the right to direct Design-Build Firm to remove and replace its Project superintendent, with or without cause.

24. PROTECTION OF WORK

- 24.1. Design-Build Firm shall fully protect the Work from loss or damage and shall bear the cost of any such loss or damage until final payment has been made. If Design-Build Firm, or any one for whom Design-Build Firm is legally liable, is responsible for any loss or damage to the Work, or other work or materials of County or County's separate Design-Build Firms, Design-Build Firm shall be charged with the same, and any monies necessary to replace such loss or damage shall be deducted from any amounts due Design-Build Firm.
- 24.2. Design-Build Firm shall not load nor permit any part of any structure to be loaded in any manner that will endanger the structure, nor shall Design-Build Firm subject any part of the Work or adjacent property to stresses or pressures that will endanger it.

25. EMERGENCIES

25.1. In the event of an emergency affecting the safety or protection of persons or

the Work or property at the Project site or adjacent thereto, Design-Build Firm, without special instruction or authorization from County is obligated to act to prevent threatened damage, injury or loss. Design-Build Firm shall give County written notice within forty-eight (48) hours after the occurrence of the emergency, if Design-Build Firm believes that any significant changes in the Work or variations from the Contract Document have been caused thereby. If the County determines that a change in the Contract Documents is required because of the action taken in response to an emergency, a Change Order shall be issued to document the consequences of the changes or variations. If Design-Build Firm fails to provide the forty-eight (48) hour written notice noted above, the Design-Build Firm shall be deemed to have waived any right it otherwise may have had to seek an adjustment to the Contract Amount or an extension to the Contract Time.

26. USE OF PREMISES

26.1. Design-Build Firm shall confine all construction equipment, the storage of materials and equipment and the operations of workers to the Project site and land and areas identified in and permitted by the Contract Documents and other lands and areas permitted by law, rights of way, permits and easements, and shall not unreasonably encumber the Project site with construction equipment or other material or equipment. Design-Build Firm shall assume full responsibility for any damage to any such land or area, or to the owner or occupant thereof, or any land or areas contiguous thereto, resulting from the performance of the Work.

27. SAFETY

- 27.1. The Design-Build Firm shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work. The Design-Build Firm shall take all necessary precautions for the safety of, and shall provide the necessary protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to:
 - 27.1.1. All employees of the Work and other persons and/or organizations who may be affected thereby;
 - 27.1.2. All the Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the Project site; and
 - 27.1.3. Other property on Project site or adjacent thereto, including trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, structures, utilities and any underground structures or improvements not designated for removal, relocation or replacement in the contract documents.
- 27.2. The Design-Build Firm shall comply with all applicable codes, laws, ordinances, rules and regulations of any public body having jurisdiction for the safety of persons or property or to protect them from damage, injury or loss. The Design-Build Firm shall erect and maintain all necessary safeguards for such safety and protection. The Design-Build Firm shall notify owners of adjacent property and of underground structures



and improvements and utility owners when prosecution of the Work may affect them, and shall cooperate with them in the protection, removal, relocation or replacement of their property. Design-Build Firm's duties and responsibilities for the safety and protection of the Work shall continue until such time as the Work is completed and final acceptance of same by County has occurred.

- 27.3. The Design-Build Firm shall designate a responsible representative at the Project site whose duty shall be the prevention of accidents. This person shall be Design-Build Firm's superintendent unless otherwise designated in writing by the Design-Build Firm to the County.
- 27.4. The Design-Build Firm shall adhere at all times to the minimum safety guidelines for construction and renovation projects as set out in Exhibit "C" of this Agreement.

28. PROJECT MEETINGS

Prior to the commencement of Work, the Design-Build Firm shall attend a preconstruction conference with the County to discuss the Progress Schedule, procedures for handling shop drawings and other submittals, and for processing Applications for Payment, and to establish a working understanding among the parties as to the Work. During the prosecution of the Work, the Design-Build Firm shall attend any and all meetings convened by the County with respect to the Project, when directed to do so by County. Design-Build Firm shall have its subcontractors and suppliers attend all such meetings (including the pre-construction conference) as may be directed by the County.

Initials____

EXHIBIT "B"

Performance and Payment Bond

BOND NO.	
BOND NO.	

PERFORMANCE BOND

KNOW ALL I	MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That
(Insert name,	address, and phone number of contractor), as Principal, and
`	me, home office address and phone number of surety) as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto the Board mmissioners for Nassau County, Florida, 96135 Nassau Place, Yulee, Florida 32097, as Obligee in the of
successors a), for the payment whereof we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, personal representatives, and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these present. Principal has entered into a contract dated as of the day of, 20, with Obligee for No,
in accordance referred to as	of project, including legal description, street address of property and general description of improvement) with drawings and specifications, which contract is by reference made a part hereof, and is hereinafter the Contract. CONDITION OF THIS BOND is that if Principal:
1. 2.	Performs the Contract at the times and in the manner prescribed in the Contract; and Pays Obligee any and all losses, damages, costs and attorneys' fees that Obligee sustains because of any default by Principal under the Contract; and
3.	Performs the guarantee of all work and materials furnished under the Contract applicable to the work and materials, then this bond is void; otherwise it remains in full force; and
4.	Principal understands and agrees that this bond shall remain in full force and effect throughout the one (1) year warranty period after substantial completion of the work.

Contract CM2573 RFP NC18-004 Fire Station 71

Page 34 of 75

The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no changes, extensions of time, alterations or additions to the terms of the Contract or other work to be performed hereunder, or the specifications referred to therein shall in anywise affect its obligation under this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such changes, extensions of time, alterations or additions to the terms of the Contract or to work or to the specifications.

This instrument shall be construed in all respects as a common law bond.

In no event will the Surety be liable in the aggregate to Obligee for more than the penalty sum of this Performance Bond, regardless of the number of suits that may be filed by Obligee. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above parties have executed this instrument this _____ day of , 20____, the name and corporate seal of each corporate party being hereto affixed and these premises duly signed by its undersigned representative, pursuant to authority of its governing body. Signed, sealed and delivered PRINCIPAL: in the presence of: By:_____ Name: _____ Witnesses as to Principal STATE OF COUNTY OF _____ The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of ______, 20____, by _____, as _____, of _____ corporation, on behalf of the corporation. He/she is personally known to me **OR** has produced as identification and did (did not) take an oath. My Commission Expires: (Signature) Name: (Legibly Printed) (AFFIX OFFICIAL SEAL) Notary Public, State of _____ Serial No., If Any: ATTEST: SURETY: (Printed Name) (Business Address) Witness

•	•		1	
l۳	11	110	als	
- 11	ш		215	

Page **35** of **75**

NA/the and	(Authorized Signature)	
Witness	(Printed Name) OR	
	As Attorney In Fact (Attach Power)	
Witnesses	(Business Address)	
	(Printed Name)	
STATE OF	(Telephone Number)	
The foregoing instrument wa	is acknowledged before me this day of	, 20 by
	_, as of onally known to me OR has produced	as Surety
on behalf of Surety. He/she is personand did (did not) take an oath. My Commission Expires:	onally known to me OR has produced	as identification
	(Signature) Name:	
(AFFIX OFFICIAL SEAL)	(Legibly Printed) Notary Public, State ofSerial No., If Any:	

BOND	NO.		

Payment Bond

BY THIS B	OND , We,	
	(Insert name, address and pho	ne number of contractor) (hereinafter called the "Principal")
and		(hereinafter called the "Surety"),
(Instance chartered and exist	sert address and phone number) ng under the laws of the State of	, a surety insurer and authorized to do business
in the State of Florid	da, are held and firmly bound unto the Board	d of County Commissioners for Nassau
County, Florida, 9	6135 Nassau Place, Yulee, Florida 3209	97, (hereinafter called the "County") in the sum of) for
payment of which wand severally.	re bind ourselves, our heirs, our personal rep	presentatives, our successors and our assignees, jointly
WHEREAS	, Principal and County have reached a mutu	ual agreement relating to Contract No
(hereinafter referred	to as the "Contract") as of	(the bid award date for projects thereto)
for the purpose of _ (Insert name of proj	ect, including legal description, street addre	ss of property and general description of improvement.)
said Contract being	made a part of this Bond by this reference.	
NOW, THE	REFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS BON	D IS THAT IF THE PRINCIPAL:
1.	Performs the contract dated,, the contract being made manner prescribed in the contract; and	, between Principal and County for construction of a part of this bond by reference, at the times and in the
2.		its, as defined in Section 255.05(1), Florida Statutes, r supplies, used directly or indirectly by Principal in the contract; and

Any action instituted by a claimant under this bond for payment must be in accordance with the notice and time limitation provisions in Section 255.05(2), Florida Statutes.

3. Pays County all loses, damages, expenses, costs, and attorney's fees, including appellate proceedings, that the County sustains because of a default by Principal under the contract; and

4. Performs the guarantee of all work and materials furnished under the contract for the time specified

in the contract, then this bond is void; otherwise it remains in full force.

BE IT FURTHER KNOWN:

- 1. Any changes in or under the Contract and compliance or noncompliance with any formalities connected with the said Contract or alterations which may be made in the terms of the said Contract, or in the work to be done under it, or the giving by the County of any extension of time for the performance of the said Contract, or any other forbearance on the part of the County or Principal to the other, shall not in any way release the Principal and the Surety, or either of them, their heirs, personal representatives, successors or assigns from liability hereunder, notice to the Surety of any such changes, alterations, extensions or forbearance being hereby waived.
- 2. Certain claimants seeking the protection of this Bond must timely comply with the strict requirements set forth in Section 255.05, Florida Statutes, and as otherwise provided by law.
- 3. As concerns payment for labor, materials and supplies, as affects certain claimants, no legal action shall be instituted against the Principal or Surety on this Bond after one (1) year from the performance of labor or the completion of delivery of the materials or supplies as is specifically mandated pursuant to Section 255.05, Florida Statutes.

THIS BOND DATED THE	DAY OF	, 20	(the date of issue	by the Surety or
by the Surety's agent and the date of	such agents power-of-attorr	ney).		
Signed, sealed and delivered				
in the presence of:	PRINCIPAL:			
				_
	Its:			
Witnesses as to Principal				
STATE OF				
COUNTY OF				
The foregoing instrument was	<u> </u>	•		•
·				
corporation, on l	·	·	ally known to me OF	R nas produced
as ider	itilication and did (did not) to	ake an oath.		
My Commission Expires:	(Cignoture)			
	(Signature)			
/··	(Legibly Printed)			
(AFFIX OFFICIAL SEAL)		tate of		
	Serial No., If Any	y:		

•	• . •				
۱r	iiti	l O l	C		
	111	ш			

Contract CM2573 RFP NC18-004 Fire Station 71

Page **38** of **75**

ATTEST:	SURETY:	
	(Printed Name)	
Witness	(Business Address)	
	(Authorized Signature)	
Witness	(Printed Name)	
	OR	
	As Attorney In Fact (Attach Power)	
Witnesses	(Business Address)	
	(Printed Name)	
STATE OF	(Telephone Number)	
COUNTY OF		
	s acknowledged before me this day of	
	, as of nally known to me OR has produced	
My Commission Expires:		
	(Signature)	
	Name:	
	(Legibly Printed)	
(AFFIX OFFICIAL SEAL)	Notary Public, State of	
	Serial No., If Any:	

EXHIBIT "C"

Insurance and Safety

GENERAL INFORMATION AND MINIMUM INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

• Exhibit 3-A Professional Services

♦ Exhibit 3-B Construction Services

MINIMUM PROJECT SAFETY REQUIREMENTS

The following safety requirements represent the minimum condition, which shall be met by all Design-Build Firms and subcontractors performing work for Nassau County: Reported or observed violations of Federal and State laws and regulations, or County ordinances shall be brought to the attention of the County project manager and County's Department of Safety and Risk Services and shall be immediately corrected by the Design-Build Firm. Additionally, the County may order work to be stopped if conditions exist that present immediate danger to persons or property. The Design-Build Firm acknowledges that any such stoppage will not shift responsibility for any damages from the Design-Build Firm to the County. Failure to comply with required safety procedures shall result in the suspension of the Work of the Design-Build Firm until such time as his operations are brought into compliance. Items which are not corrected or that are disputed by the Design-Build Firm may be referred by the County's Department of Safety and Risk Services for inspection or interpretation. The Design-Build Firm shall take reasonable precautions for work place safety and shall provide reasonable protection to prevent damage, injury, or loss to employees on the work site and to other persons who may be affected by the Work.

- (1) Prior to the commencement of the project, the Design-Build Firm and all subcontractors shall provide to the County a written copy of their respective safety and health plans for review as part of the pre-submittal bid package.
- (2) The Design-Build Firm shall establish and maintain an access control system at the work site, including a daily sign-in log, for all visitors, including County and regulatory personnel. Prior to commencement of construction, the project manager may designate specific individuals for routine access so that their duties are not impeded. All visitors that are not pre-approved for admittance shall be escorted through the project by either a Design-Build Firm representative or by the project manager or designee.
- (3) The Design-Build Firm shall provide all necessary safety equipment for County staff, employees, and visitors to enter the work site. This equipment may include hard hats, hearing protection, safety glasses, or any other safety items deemed necessary by the Design-Build Firm or required by State or Federal safety

Initials

regulations.

- (4) Construction vehicles on the work site shall always be operated in a safe manner. The Design-Build Firm shall take appropriate action to ensure the safety of County staff, visitors, and the general public while operating work vehicles at a "controlled" construction site. Where conditions warrant, or at the request of the County, temporary barriers shall also be established for these traffic areas.
- (5) The Design-Build Firm shall prominently mark the work site and ensure its security. Site security shall include appropriate fencing, barricades, warning tape, covered walkways and warning signs. In no instance shall a work site be accessible, without obvious warning, to County staff, visitors, or the general public. At a minimum, the project site shall be posted with the appropriate trespass warning signs as specified in Section 810.09(2)(d), Florida Statutes: THIS AREA IS A DESIGNATED CONSTRUCTION SITE; ANYONE TRESPASSING ON THIS PROPERTY SHALL, UPON CONVICTION, BE GUILTY OF A FELONY; "A DANGER, CONSTRUCTION SITE. AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL ONLY," and other general safety warning signs, i.e., "HARD HAT AREA," as are deemed necessary by the Design-Build Firm and project manager.
- (6) In the event barricading of a work site is not feasible, alternative measures may be used upon prior approval by the County safety Office. Alternative measures may include, but are not limited to, working during "off 'hours such as nights, weekends, or holidays, or the providing of temporary accommodations for building occupants (to be prearranged, if necessary, at the discretion of the County).
- (7) The Design-Build Firm shall ensure compliance with all fire safety codes at the work site, especially as to egress, during the construction phase of an occupied facility. In no instance, (except where impractical and with the prior approval of the County's Department of Safety and Risk Services and the appropriate life safety code inspector), shall the life safety code components of an occupied facility be reduced or otherwise compromised.

A set of these construction plans, with a signature of approval by the appropriate life safety code inspector, shall be kept at each construction site and available for routine inspection. The Design-Build Firm shall communicate with each subcontractor and County's Department of Safety and Risk Services as to scheduling of events that may pose hazards or inconveniences to building occupants. The Design-Build Firm shall also ensure that appropriate scheduling information is also conveyed to the project manager.

 When a project alters a building's fire protection compartment features, such as fire barriers, smoke barriers, or corridor walls, exits must provide free and unobstructed egress. Employees shall receive notice if any alternative exits have been designated. Buildings or areas under construction must maintain escape egress for construction workers at all

•	•	. •	1			
In	11	tı.	വ	C		
11	ш	ւլ	aı			

times. These means of egress shall be inspected daily by the Design-Build Firm.

- When a project affects fire alarms, fire detection, or fire suppression systems, of a building that is occupied, the Design-Build Firm must ensure that such systems are not functionally impaired. Any temporary systems, which are installed, must be inspected and tested monthly by the Design-Build Firm. Employees must be notified when such temporary systems are in place.
- When any sources of ignition are present, such as welding torches, smoking by all persons shall be prohibited on any construction site and in any County facility.
- (8) Noise, dust, and the use of chemical products may create inside health hazards at the work site to building occupants requiring that the Design-Build Firm to adhere to the following guidelines at a minimum:
 - (a) The Design-Build Firm shall initiate construction and engineering safety controls to minimize exposure of dusts, noise, and chemical odors to building occupants. These controls may involve the construction or use of temporary walls, plastic barriers, mechanical ventilation, elimination of make-up air returns from work areas, pressurizing occupied areas, or a combination of several methods. The Design-Build Firm shall coordinate all such engineering efforts with the project manager, and these control measures shall require prior approval by the County's Department of Safety and Risk Services. In cases where these efforts may not be feasible, alternative work schedules on evenings and weekends may be instituted as a part of this process.
 - (b) Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) shall be provided to the County's Department of Safety and Risk Services for all hazardous substances used on the project or brought on the job site. These products include, but are not limited to, paints, solvents, roofing compounds, and cleaning compounds.
 - (c) Appropriate precautions shall be taken to prevent occupant exposure to hazardous respirable dusts, contaminants, and fumes from welding, cutting, or drilling of concrete and masonry, or the operation of internal combustion engines. The Design-Build Firm shall also determine whether respirable crystalline silica, which is a potential carcinogen contained in many building products, is present at the work site. Control of dusts from these types of products and operations shall be an essential safety requirement for the Design-Build Firm.
 - (d) The Design-Build Firm should be aware of other buildings adjacent to his

work areas and shall be prepared to take necessary actions to prevent the spread of dusts and fumes to those facilities.

- (9) The Design-Build Firm shall ensure that all emergency notifications, including those for fires and medical needs, shall be promptly made by dialing County 911 dispatchers. The Caller should state the exact location of the work site emergency, the nature of the emergency, and specifically indicate if medical or fire services are needed.
- (10) The Design-Build Firm agrees and understands that all County construction/renovation sites shall be subject to periodic inspection by life safety code inspectors, Florida Department of Labor and Employment Security, Division of Safety, Occupational Safety and Health Administration, Florida Department of Environmental Protection, Environmental Protection Agency, and other Federal, State, or County regulatory agencies.
- (11) The Design-Build Firm shall provide adequate refuse containers for the disposal of construction debris. Refuse shall not be allowed to accumulate on the project site grounds, and the Design-Build Firm shall ensure that these containers are subsequently emptied on a regular basis.
- (12) Water runoff and soil erosion from the project site shall be controlled by the Design-Build Firm pursuant to the regulations of the Florida Department of Environmental Protection.
- (13) Water-based paint and stain products shall be used by the Design-Build Firm in the place of solvent-based products where the application so permits. Use of organic solvent-based products shall be used only where absolutely necessary and with the prior approval of the project manager. Lead-containing paints shall not be normally used or specified for any application. If the use of lead-containing paint is essential for a specific application, prior written approval from the County's Department of Safety and Risk Services shall be obtained before their use.
- (14) The use of any products containing toxic metals, especially those regulated by Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), (i.e. lead, chromium, barium, silver, arsenic, cadmium, mercury, selenium), on the work site shall be avoided. Prior written approval for use of these metals shall be obtained by the Design-Build Firm from the County's Department of Safety and Risk Services.
- (15) The use of any radioactive materials by the Design-Build Firm on project sites shall require pre-approval. Copies of appropriate certifications, licenses, testing, and inspection records shall be provided by the Design-Build Firm to the project manager and County's Department of Safety and Risk Services for review.
- (16) The County contracts out the identification and abatement of asbestos containing building materials. Asbestos abatement can only be performed by state licensed

•	•	. •	1			
I۲	nii	111	പ	C		
		1.14	11	•		

Page **43** of **75**

asbestos abatement design-build firms. General design-build firms, therefore, shall not be authorized to remove or disturb any asbestos containing materials. Although efforts are made to identify or remove such asbestos containing materials prior to renovations, the possibility exists that asbestos materials may be encountered at a work site. If so, design-build firms who encounter such materials shall immediately stop work and notify the project manager and the County's Department of Safety and Risk Services.

(17) The above-cited guidelines represent minimum expectations and actions, which shall be taken by design-build firms while under contract for County construction and renovation projects. These guidelines are not all inclusive and will be revised as necessary. In the event these guidelines conflict with other contract documents, the most stringent application shall apply. Any questions or disputes should be brought to the immediate attention of the project manager and County's Department of Safety and Risk Service

Exhibit 3A

GENERAL INFORMATION AND MINIMUM INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Contractor/Vendor shall purchase and maintain at the Contractor/Vendor's expense Commercial General Liability insurance coverage (ISO or comparable Occurrence Form) for the life of this Contract. Modified Occurrence or Claims Made forms are not acceptable.

The Limits of this insurance shall not be less than the following limits:

Each Occurrence Limit	\$1,000,000
Personal & Advertising Injury Limit	\$1,000,000
Fire Damage Limit (any one fire)	\$ 300,000
Medical Expense Limit (any one person)	\$ 10,000
Products & Completed Operations Aggregate Limit	\$2,000,000
General Aggregate Limit (other than Products &	
Completed Operations) Applies Per Project	\$2,000,000

General liability coverage shall continue to apply to "bodily injury" and to "property damage" occurring after all work on the Site of the covered operations to be performed by or on behalf of the additional insureds has been completed and shall continue after that portion of "your work" out of which the injury or damage arises has been put to its intended use.

WORKERS' COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYER'S LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Contractor/Vendor shall purchase and maintain at the Contractor/Vendor's expense Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability insurance coverage for the life of this Contract.

The Limits of this insurance shall not be less than the following limits:

<u>Part One</u> – Workers' Compensation Insurance – Unlimited Statutory Benefits as provided in the Florida Statutes and <u>Part Two</u> – Employer's Liability Insurance

Bodily Injury By Accident \$500,000 Each Accident
Bodily Injury By Disease \$500,000 Policy Limit
Bodily Injury By Disease \$500,000 Each Employee

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Contractor/Vendor shall purchase and maintain at the Contractor/Vendor's expense Automobile Liability insurance coverage for the life of this Contract.

The Limits of this insurance shall not be less than the following limits:

Combined Single Limit – Each Accident \$1,000,000

Covered Automobiles shall include any auto owned or operated by the insured Contractor/Vendor, insured Sub-Contractor/Vendor including autos which are leased, hired, rented or borrowed, including autos owned by their employees which are used in connection with the business of the respective Contractor/Vendor or Sub-Contractor/Vendor.

UMBRELLA LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Contractor/Vendor shall purchase and maintain at the Contractor/Vendor's expense Umbrella/Excess Liability (Umbrella Form) insurance coverage for the life of this Contract.

The Limits of this insurance shall not be less than the following limits:

Each Occurrence Limit \$2,000,000

Initial	

^{*}If leased employees are used, policy must include an Alternate Employer's Endorsement

Exhibit 3A Aggregate Limit \$2,000,000

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY (ERRORS & OMISSIONS)

This additional coverage will be required for all projects involving consultants, engineering services, architectural or design-build projects, independent testing firms and similar exposures.

The Contractor/Vendor shall purchase and maintain at the Contractor/Vendor's expense Professional Liability insurance coverage for the life of this Contract.

If the contract includes a requirement for Professional Liability or Errors and Omissions insurance, the minimum amount of such insurance shall be as follows:

Each Occurrence/Annual Aggregate – **Project Specific Form** \$1,000,000

OR

Each Occurrence/Annual Aggregate – Non Project Specific Form \$3,000,000

Design Professional Liability coverage will be provided on an Occurrence Form or a Claims Made Form with a retroactive date to at least the first date of this Agreement. If provided on a Claims Made Form, the coverages must respond to all claims reported within three years following the period for which coverage is required and which would have been covered had the coverage been on an occurrence basis.

ENVIRONMENTAL LIABILITY INSURANCE

This additional coverage will be required by any Contractor performing environmental and/or other investigations involving excavation, drilling, or other site disturbance activities.

The Contractor shall purchase and maintain at the Contractor's expense Environmental Liability insurance (Contractors Pollution Liability) coverage for the life of this Contract.

The Limits of insurance shall not be less than the following limits:

\$1,000,000 Each Loss/Aggregate

Such Coverage will include bodily injury, sickness, and disease, mental anguish or shock sustained by any person, including death; property damage including physical injury to destruction of tangible property including resulting loss of use thereof, cleanup costs, and the loss of use of tangible property that has not been physically injured or destroyed; defense including costs charges and expenses incurred in the investigation, adjustment or defense of claims for such compensatory damages; coverage for losses caused by pollution conditions that arises from the operations of the contractor including transportation.

CRIME/FIDELITY COVERAGE

This additional coverage will be required for all service providers involving information technology services, Pension consulting and administration, and similar exposures.

The Contractor/Vendor shall purchase and maintain at the Contractor/Vendor's expense Crime/Fidelity and/or Fiduciary Liability insurance coverage for the life of this Contract.

If the contract includes a requirement for expense Crime/Fidelity and/or Fiduciary Liability insurance, the minimum amount of such insurance shall be as follows:

Third Party Employee Dishonesty

\$1,000,000

Contractor/Vendor shall require each of his Sub-Contractor/Vendors to likewise purchase and maintain at their expense Commercial General Liability insurance, Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability coverage, Automobile Liability insurance and Umbrella Liability insurance, Professional Liability, Environmental Liability, Cyber and Data Security insurance coverage (as applicable) meeting the same limit and requirements as the Contractor/Vendors insurance.

T	
Initial	
пппп	N .

Exhibit 3A

Certificates of Insurance acceptable to Nassau County Board of County Commissioners for the Contractor/Vendor's insurance must be received within ten (10) days of Notification of Selection and at time of signing Agreement.

Certificates of Insurance and the insurance policies required for this Agreement shall contain an endorsement that coverage afforded under the policies will not be cancelled or allowed to expire until at least thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to Nassau County Board of County Commissioners.

Certificates of Insurance and the insurance policies required for this Agreement will include a provision that policies, except Workers' Compensation and Professional Liability, are primary and noncontributory to any insurance maintained by the Contractor/Vendor.

Nassau County Board of County Commissioners must be named as an Additional Insured and endorsed onto the Commercial General Liability (CGL), Auto Liability, Umbrella Liability and Environmental Liability policy(ies). A copy of the endorsement(s) must be supplied to Nassau County Board of County Commissioners ten (10) days following the execution of the agreement or prior to the first date of services, whichever comes first.

CGL policy Additional Insured Endorsement must include Ongoing and Completed Operations (Form CG2010 11 84 **OR** Form CG2010 04 13 and GC2037 04 13 edition or equivalent). Other Additional Insured forms might be acceptable but only if modified to delete the word "ongoing" and insert the sentence "Operations include ongoing and completed operations".

CGL policy shall not be endorsed with Exclusion - Damage to Work performed by Subcontractor/Vendors on Your Behalf (CG2294 or CG2295)

CGL policy shall not be endorsed with Contractual Liability Limitation Endorsement (CG2139) or Amendment of Insured Contract Definition (CG 2426)

CGL policy shall not be endorsed with Exclusion - Damage to Premises Rented to you (CG 2145) CGL policy shall include broad form contractual liability coverage for the Contractor/Vendors covenants to and indemnification of the Authority under this Contract

Certificates of Insurance and the insurance policies required for this Agreement shall contain a provision under General Liability, Auto Liability, Environmental Liability and Workers' Compensation to include a Waiver of Subrogation clause in favor of Nassau County Board of County Commissioners.

All Certificates of Insurance shall be dated and shall show the name of the insured Contractor/Vendor, the specific job by name and job number, the name of the insurer, the policy number assigned its effective date and its termination date and a list of any exclusionary endorsements.

All Insurers must be authorized to transact insurance business in the State of Florida as provided by Florida Statute 624.09(1) and the most recent Rating Classification/Financial Category of the insurer as published in the latest edition of "Best's Key Rating Guide' (Property-Casualty) must be at least A- or above.

All of the above referenced Insurance coverage is required to remain in force for the duration of this Agreement and for the duration of the warranty period. Accordingly, at the time of submission of final application for payment, Contractor/Vendor shall submit an additional Certificate of Insurance evidencing continuation of such coverage.

If the Contractor/Vendor fails to procure, maintain or pay for the required insurance, Nassau County Board of County Commissioners shall have the right (but not the obligation) to secure same in the name of and for the account of Contractor/Vendor, in which event, Contractor/Vendor shall pay the cost thereof and shall furnish upon demand, all information that may be required to procure such insurance. Nassau County Board of County Commissioners shall have the right to back-charge Contractor/Vendor for the cost of procuring such insurance. The failure of Nassau County Board of County Commissioners to demand certificates of insurance and endorsements evidencing the required insurance or to identify any deficiency in Contractor/Vendors coverage based on the evidence of insurance provided by the Contractor/Vendor shall not be construed as a waiver by Nassau County Board of County Commissioners of Contractor/Vendor's obligation to procure, maintain and pay for required insurance.

The insurance requirements set forth herein shall in no way limit Contractor/Vendors liability arising out of the work performed under the Agreement or related activities. The inclusions, coverage and limits set forth herein are minimum inclusion, coverage and limits. The required minimum policy limits set forth shall not be construed as a

Initia	

Exhibit 3A

limitation of Contractor/Vendor's right under any policy with higher limits, and no policy maintained by the Contractor/Vendor shall be construed as limiting the type, quality or quantity of insurance coverage that Contractor/Vendor should maintain. Contractor/Vendor shall be responsible for determining appropriate inclusions, coverage and limits, which may be in excess of the minimum requirements set forth herein.

If the insurance of any Contractor/Vendor or any Subcontractor/Vendor contains deductible(s), penalty(ies) or self-insured retention(s), the Contractor/Vendor or Subcontractor/Vendor whose insurance contains such provision(s) shall be solely responsible for payment of such deductible(s), penalty(ies) or self-insured retention(s).

The failure of Contractor/Vendor to fully and strictly comply at all times with the insurance requirements set forth herein shall be deemed a material breach of the Agreement.

GENERAL INFORMATION AND MINIMUM INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Contractor shall purchase and maintain at the Contractor's expense Commercial General Liability insurance coverage (ISO or comparable Occurrence Form) for the life of this Contract. Modified Occurrence or Claims Made Forms are not acceptable.

The Limits of this insurance shall not be less than the following limits:

Each Occurrence Limit	\$1,000,000
Personal & Advertising Injury Limit	\$1,000,000
Fire Damage Limit (any one fire)	\$ 300,000
Medical Expense Limit (any one person)	\$ 10,000
Products & Completed Operations Aggregate Limit	\$2,000,000
General Aggregate Limit (other than Products &	
Completed Operations) Applies Per Project	\$2,000,000

General liability coverage shall continue to apply to "bodily injury" and to "property damage" occurring after all work on the Site of the covered operations to be performed by or on behalf of the additional insureds has been completed and shall continue after that portion of "your work" out of which the injury or damage arises has been put to its intended use.

WORKERS' COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYER'S LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Contractor shall purchase and maintain at the Contractor's expense Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability insurance coverage for the life of this Contract.

The Limits of this insurance shall not be less than the following limits:

<u>Part One</u> – Workers' Compensation Insurance – Unlimited Statutory Benefits as provided in the Florida Statutes and

Part Two – Employer's Liability Insurance

Bodily Injury By Accident \$500,000 Each Accident
Bodily Injury By Disease \$500,000 Policy Limit
Bodily Injury By Disease \$500,000 Each Employee

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Contractor shall purchase and maintain at the Contractor's expense Automobile Liability insurance coverage for the life of this Contract.

The Limits of this insurance shall not be less than the following limits:

Combined Single Limit – Each Accident

Covered Automobiles shall include any auto owned or operated by the insured Contractor, insured Sub-subcontractor including autos which are leased, hired, rented or borrowed, including autos owned by their employees which are used in connection with the business of the respective Contractor or Sub-subcontractor.

\$1,000,000

^{*}If leased employees are used, policy must include an Alternate Employer's Endorsement

UMBRELLA INSURANCE

The Contractor shall purchase and maintain at the Contractor's expense Umbrella Liability (Umbrella Form) insurance coverage for the life of this Contract.

The Limits of this insurance shall not be less than the following limits:

Each Occurrence Limit \$2,000,000 Aggregate Limit \$2,000,000

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY (ERRORS & OMISSIONS)

This additional coverage will be required for all projects involving consultants, engineering services, architectural or design/build projects, independent testing firms and similar exposures.

The Contractor shall purchase and maintain at the Contractor's expense Professional Liability insurance coverage for the life of this Contract.

If the contract includes a requirement for Professional Liability or Errors and Omissions insurance, the minimum amount of such insurance shall be as follows:

Each Occurrence/Annual Aggregate Project Specific \$1,000,000

Design Professional Liability coverage will be provided on an Occurrence Form or a Claims Made Form with a retroactive date to at least the first date of this Agreement. If provided on a Claims Made Form, the coverages must respond to all claims reported within three years following the period for which coverage is required and which would have been covered had the coverage been on an occurrence basis.

ENVIRONMENTAL LIABILITY INSURANCE

This additional coverage will be required by any Contractor performing environmental and/or other investigations involving excavation, drilling, or other site disturbance activities.

The Contractor shall purchase and maintain at the Contractor's expense Environmental Liability insurance (Contractors Pollution Liability) coverage for the life of this Contract.

The Limits of insurance shall not be less than the following limits:

\$1,000,000 Each Loss/Aggregate

Such Coverage will include bodily injury, sickness, and disease, mental anguish or shock sustained by any person, including death; property damage including physical injury to destruction of tangible property including resulting loss of use thereof, cleanup costs, and the loss of use of tangible property that has not been physically injured or destroyed; defense including costs charges and expenses incurred in the investigation, adjustment or defense of claims for such compensatory damages; coverage for losses caused by pollution conditions that arises from the operations of the contractor including transportation.

BUILDERS RISK OR INSTALLATION FLOATER

This additional coverage will be required if the contract includes construction of or additions to above-ground buildings or structures, or installation of machinery or equipment.

The minimum amount of insurance shall be 100% of the completed value of such addition(s), building(s), or structure(s), or the installed replacement cost of value.

Contractor shall require each of his Subcontractors to likewise purchase and maintain at their expense Commercial General Liability insurance, Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability coverage, Automobile Liability insurance, Umbrella Liability Professional Liability, Environmental Liability, Builders Risk or Installation Floater (as applicable) insurance coverage meeting the same limit and requirements as the Contractors insurance.

Certificates of Insurance acceptable to Nassau County Board of County Commissioners for the Contractor/Vendor's insurance must be received within ten (10) days of Notification of Selection and at time of signing Agreement.

Certificates of Insurance and the insurance policies required for this Agreement shall contain an endorsement that coverage afforded under the policies will not be cancelled or allowed to expire until at least thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to Nassau County Board of County Commissioners.

Certificates of Insurance and the insurance policies required for this Agreement will include a provision that policies, except Workers' Compensation and Professional Liability, are primary and noncontributory to any insurance maintained by the Contractor.

Nassau County Board of County Commissioners must be named as an Additional Insured and endorsed onto the Commercial General Liability (CGL), Auto Liability and Umbrella Liability policy (ies). A copy of the endorsement(s) must be supplied to Nassau County Board of County Commissioners ten (10) days following the execution of the agreement or prior to the first date of services, whichever comes first.

CGL policy Additional Insured Endorsement must include Ongoing and Completed Operations (Form CG2010 11 84 **OR** Form CG2010 04 13 and GC2037 04 13 edition or equivalent). Other Additional Insured forms might be acceptable but only if modified to delete the word "ongoing" and insert the sentence "Operations include ongoing and completed operations".

CGL policy shall not be endorsed with Exclusion - Damage to Work performed by Subcontractors on Your Behalf (CG2294 or CG2295)

CGL policy shall not be endorsed with Contractual Liability Limitation Endorsement (CG2139) or Amendment of Insured Contract Definition (CG 2426)

CGL policy shall not be endorsed with Exclusion - Damage to Premises Rented to you (CG 2145) CGL policy shall include broad form contractual liability coverage for the Contractors covenants to and indemnification of the Authority under this Contract

Certificates of Insurance and the insurance policies required for this Agreement shall contain a provision under General Liability, Auto Liability and Workers' Compensation to include a Waiver of Subrogation clause in favor of Nassau County Board of County Commissioners.

All Certificates of Insurance shall be dated and shall show the name of the insured Contractor, the specific job by name and job number, the name of the insurer, the policy number assigned its effective date and its termination date and a list of any exclusionary endorsements.

All Insurers must be authorized to transact insurance business in the State of Florida as provided by Florida Statute 624.09(1) and the most recent Rating Classification/Financial Category of the insurer as published in the latest edition of "Best's Key Rating Guide' (Property-Casualty) must be at least A- or above.

All of the above referenced Insurance coverage is required to remain in force for the duration of this Agreement and for the duration of the warranty period. Accordingly, at the time of submission of final application for payment, Contractor shall submit an additional Certificate of Insurance evidencing continuation of such coverage.

If the Contractor fails to procure, maintain or pay for the required insurance, Nassau County Board of County Commissioners shall have the right (but not the obligation) to secure same in the name of and for the account of

Initials

Contractor, in which event, Contractor shall pay the cost thereof and shall furnish upon demand, all information that may be required to procure such insurance. Nassau County Board of County Commissioners shall have the right to back-charge contractor for the cost of procuring such insurance. The failure of Nassau County Board of County Commissioners to demand certificates of insurance and endorsements evidencing the required insurance or to identify any deficiency in contractors coverage based on the evidence of insurance provided by the contractor shall not be construed as a waiver by Nassau County Board of County Commissioners of contractor's obligation to procure, maintain and pay for required insurance.

The insurance requirements set forth herein shall in no way limit Contractors liability arising out of the work performed under the Agreement or related activities. The inclusions, coverage and limits set forth herein are minimum inclusion, coverage and limits. The required minimum policy limits set forth shall not be construed as a limitation of Contractor's right under any policy with higher limits, and no policy maintained by the Contractor shall be construed as limiting the type, quality or quantity of insurance coverage that Contractor should maintain. Contractor shall be responsible for determining appropriate inclusions, coverage and limits, which may be in excess of the minimum requirements set forth herein.

If the insurance of any Contractor or any subcontractor contains deductible(s), penalty(ies) or self-insured retention(s), the Contractor or Subcontractor whose insurance contains such provision(s) shall be solely responsible for payment of such deductible(s), penalty(ies) or self-insured retention(s).

The failure of Contractor to fully and strictly comply at all times with the insurance requirements set forth herein shall be deemed a material breach of the Agreement.

EXHIBIT "D"

Release and Affidavit

COUNTY OF NASSAU STATE OF FLORIDA

	Before	me,				authority, duly sworn, de		ly appeared ays:
\$	` '							onsideration of ases and waives
for it and Nass betw	self and its expenses, sau Count veen Desig	s subcontra , whether i y, Florida,	ctors, mat n contract ("County" m and Cou	erialmet or in relati unty da	en, succes tort, agair ng in any ted	sors and assignst the Board way to the pe	ns, all claims of County Cerformance o	demands, costs ommissioners of the Agreement or the period from
and whic	(2) Dassigns, the County r	esign-Buil at all charg	d Firm cert ges for laboued or for v	ifies fo or, mat vhich a	or itself and terials, sup	its subcontract plies, lands, lic	enses and ot	men, successors her expenses for nt bond might be
	ands or sung out of t	ıits, actions	s, claims c	f liens	or other c	harges filed or	asserted ag	s County from all ainst the County his Release and
	(4)	This Re	elease and		vit is giver monthly/fin	in connection al)	with Design-	·Build Firm's
Appl	ication for	Payment N	lo					
					ESIGN-BU	JILD FIRM:		
				B	By:			
Witn	esses							
						[Corporate S	seal]	

STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF NASSAU

The	foregoing	instrument , 20		acknowle by	dged	before	me	this		_ day ,	of as
	0	f	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				,	a		,	
corporation,	on behalf	•		He/she is and did (di	•	•		me	OR ha	s produ	ced
My Commis	sion Expire	s:									
				(Sign	ature)						
				Name	e:						
				(Legil	bly Pri	nted)					
(AFFIX OFF	ICIAL SEA	L)		Notar	y Pub	lic, State	of				
				Seria	l No.,	If Any:					

EXHIBIT "E"

Form of Contract Application for Payment

APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PROGRESS PAYMENT

OWNER:		
CONTRACTOR:		
Purchase Order No.: Project Tit	le:	
Engineer/Architect:		
Engineer/Architect Project No.:	Contract Number:	
Progress Payment No.: for Period _	to	
1. Original Contract Sum	\$	
2. Net Change by Change Orders	\$	
3. Contract Sum to Date (Line 1 + Line 2)	\$	
4. Work Completed and Stored to Date	·	
5. Amount Retained (Percent)	\$	
6. Total Earned Less Retainage (Line 4 minus Line 5).	\$	
7. Less Previous Payments	\$	
8. CURRENT PAYMENT DUE	\$	
CERTIFICATI	ON OF CONTRACTOR	
legitimate obligations incurred in connection with Worthrough inclusive; (2) title of all Work, materia in or covered by this Application for Payment will pass security interests and encumbrances (except such as are	e been applied on account to discharge CONTRACTOR'S k covered by prior Applications for Payment numbered 1 ls and equipment incorporated in said Work or otherwise list to OWNER at time of payment free and clear of all Liens, e covered by a Bond acceptable to OWNER indemnifying cumbrance); and (3) all Work covered by this Application for and is not defective.	
Contractor	Date	
By: (Authorized Representative)	Title	
CERTIFICATION C	OF ENGINEER/ARCHITECT	
representatives or assistants, the Engineer/Architect cer	icated, the quality of the Work is in accordance with the	ed
AMOUNT		
CERTIFIED:	from the amount applied for	
(Attach explanation if amount certified differs	from the amount applied for	

ENGINEER / ARCHITECT:		
By:	(Date)	(Firm)
	AFFIDAVIT OF CONTRAC	CTOR
STATE OF	-	
COUNTY OF	_	who, being first duly
That he is the on the following described public works I	oforoject:	, and the Contractor
JOB DESCRIPTION:		
CONTRACTING AUTHORITY: Nass	au County Board of County C	ommissioners
That all persons who furnish labor, suppli the CONTRACT have been paid, to date, AND FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH N	in full, including all subcontra	
		By:
WITNESS my hand and official seal, this	day of	, 20
		Notary Public
		My Commission Expires:

Project Title:	County Purchase Order No.:				
Progress Payment No.:	Engineer / Architect Project No.:				

Item No.				ORIGINAL ESTIMATE			PREVIOUSLY COMPLETED		COMPLETED THIS PERIOD		COMPLETED TO DATE		
			Unit	Qty. Bid	Unit Cost	Amount	Quan.	Amount	Quan.	Amount	Quan.	Amount	Percent Complete

EXHIBIT "F"

Construction Change Order

PROJECT:			
DATE OF ISSUANCE:	E	EFFECTIVE DATE:	
NASSAU COUNTY BOARD OF COUN COUNTY Contract / Purchase Order No		IERS	
CONTRACTOR:	E	ENGINEER / ARCHITECT:	:
You are directed to make the following Description:	changes in the Co	ntract Documents.	
Reason for Change Order:			
Attachments:			
CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE:		CHANGE IN CONTRACT TI	MES:
Original Contract Price		Original Contract Times	
\$		Substantial Completion:	
		Ready For Final Payment:	
			(days or dates)
Net change from previous Change Orders N	o to No	Net change from previous Cl	hange Orders No to No
\$			(days)
Contract Price prior to this Change Order		Contract Times Prior to this 0	Change Order
\$		Substantial Completion:	
		Ready For Final Payment:	(days or dates)
			(days of dates)
Net Increase (decrease) of this Change Orde	er	Net Increase (decrease) of the	his Change Order
\$			(days)
Contract Price with all approved Change Ord	ders	Contract Times Prior with all Substantial Completion:	approved Change Orders
		Ready For Final Payment:	
			(days or dates)
RECOMMENDED:	APPROVED:	A	CCEPTED:
Ву:	Ву:	By:	
Engineer/Architect (Authorized Signature)	COUNTY	(Authorized Signature)	Contractor (Authorized Signature)
Date:	Date:	Date	e: Initials
			muais

EXHIBIT "G"

Owner Direct Purchases Supplementary Conditions

Owner Direct Purchases

I. General

The County reserves the right to require the Contractor to assign some or all of its subcontracts or other agreements with material suppliers directly to the County, in accordance with Rule 12A-1.094, F.A.C. This process will be referred to as Owner Direct Purchases (ODP) and is a method that may be utilized to create savings for the county. The County saves the amount of the sales tax, (currently 7%) when it purchases material/equipment required for a construction project directly from the manufacturer/supplier (material/equipment cost only), and simultaneously decreases the amount of the contract for the cost of the materials/equipment plus the sales tax. The contract cost reduction is accomplished through the construction change order process. Additional savings may also be realized if the County negotiates a cost reduction for the associated reduced premium cost for the project price guarantee, (e.g., performance and payment bond(s), irrevocable letter of credit, bank check, etc.)

II. <u>Initial Requirements</u>

An approval letter, Request for Technical Assistance Advisement County Purchase of Materials, from the Florida Department of Revenue specific to the project is necessary prior to proceeding. The Contract Management/Purchase Agent will provide the detailed project information and the County Attorney's Office will prepare this correspondence. The original must be kept in the contract project file and a copy shall be forwarded to the Clerk of the Courts, Accounts Payable.

III. Bid Document Specification

Specification shall include a section, Supplementary Conditions Owner Direct Purchases specifying the rules for ODP. The following steps are minimum requirements and may be enhanced based on individual project circumstances:

- a. Material suppliers shall be selected by the Contractor using competitive bidding/proposals. Supply contracts shall be awarded by the contractor to the supplier who bid/proposal is most advantageous to the County, price and other aspects considered.
- b. The contractor shall include the price for all construction materials/equipment in lump sum price in his bid. The Contractor's bid shall also include all Florida State sales and other taxes normally applicable to such material and equipment. The County may consider purchasing any item but does not expect to issue purchase orders for less than 5,000.00. County Purchasing of selected construction materials will be administered on a deductive change order basis.
- c. The contractor shall provide the County a list of all intended suppliers for consideration as ODP. This list shall be submitted at the same time as the preliminary schedule of

•	•	. •	1			
I۲	nii	111	പ	C		
		1.14	11	•		

values and the project (CPM) schedule. Along with the list, the contractor shall include the price quotes from the suppliers, including any terms and conditions negotiated with the suppliers. The contractor shall also supply the County with a description of materials/equipment to be supplied along with the quantities and prices. The contractor is responsible for selecting the supplier, specifications, material receipt, inspecting shipments, and assure that the material or service paid for by the County is appropriate for the construction. The contractor retains all responsibility for an acceptable finished project.

- d. The contractor shall be responsible for maintaining the project schedule and the execution of the terms and conditions of the ODP purchase order, including expediting the suppliers' delivery schedules.
- e. The purchase order form used for the Owner Direct Purchases has to be a County issued purchase order, and the purchase order package shall include the County's consumer certificate of exemption number for materials.
- f. The contract shall require the County to retain legal title of all ODP from the time ownership title changes from the seller to the buyer until it is incorporated into the project or consumed in completion of the project.
- g. The County will remit payment directly to the suppliers of the ODP.
- h. The contractor shall be responsible for receipt and inspection of goods received and accompanying shipping documents under the ODP process, insuring they conform to specifications.
- i. The contractor shall notify the County of any goods received that are damaged or are in non-compliance with the specifications, and to facilitate a timely replacement.
- j. The suppliers must directly invoice the County for the ODP, but the contractor shall be responsible for approving receiving reports for goods that were received in accordance with the specifications and forwarding them to the Contract Management office to be processed for payment. The County must pay the ODP suppliers directly.
- k. The contractor shall maintain records of all ODP received and incorporated into the work and provide the County with a monthly accounting.
- I. The contractor shall be responsible for obtaining and managing all warranties and guarantees for all material and products specified in the contract documents.

IV. <u>Requirements for Purchase Order Issuance</u>

The Contract Management/Purchasing, as a clerical function to allow for payment, will issue a purchase order to the intended supplier and a deduct change order/purchase order to the contractor. In order to facilitate the issuing of the purchase order(s), the Contractor will assist the County in submitting to the Contract Management/Purchasing office the following:

- a. The list of supplier' FEI numbers, addresses, phone numbers, etc., to enable their inclusion into the County's financial system.
- b. A deductive change order for the cost of the materials, equipment plus the sales tax, and, if possible, the amount of the change order that should include the project's guarantee associated premium cost reduction.

- c. A requisition, specifying price, quantity, deliver, material/equipment description, etc., made out to the intended supplier. This information shall be identical to the price quotes mentioned in Section III.c. Upon receipt of the requisition, Clerk Finance will issue a purchase order.
- d. A printed copy of the ODP purchase order made out to the material supplier; and a photo copy to the contractor and the deduct change order/purchase order, made out to the contractor will be distributed as usual.

EXHIBIT "H"

Contract Definitions

Defined Terms

Wherever used in the Contract Documents, the following terms have the meanings indicated which are applicable to both the singular and plural thereof:

- 1. Agreement The written contract between Owner and Design-Builder covering the Work; other Contract Documents are attached to or referred in the Agreement. All such documents shall be deemed to be a part of the Agreement for all purposes.
- 2. Architect & Engineer A duly licensed individual or entity designated by Design-Builder to perform or furnish specified Design Professional Services in connection with the Work.
- 3. Asbestos Any material that contains more than one percent asbestos and is friable or is releasing asbestos fibers into the air above current action levels established by the United States Occupational Safety and Health Administration.
- 4. Bonds Performance and Payment Bonds and other instruments of security.
- 5. Cash Flow Projection A schedule prepared by Design-Builder estimating that portion of the Contract Price to be due during each month of performance.
- 6. Change Order A written order issued by Owner which orders minor changes in the Work for which prices for the items of work are previously established by the Contract Documents, but which does not involve a change in the physical limits of the work or the Contract Time.
- 7. Construction The process of performing the Work and the final end product of that process. This term may also refer to portions of the final end product. The terms construct and constructing and other similar variations of those terms also refer to Construction as defined herein. The term construction shall not be deemed to include the performance of Design Professional Services.
- 8. Construction Phase Fee The compensation to be paid to the Design-Build Firm during the Construction Phase and include:
 - 8.1 Salaries or other compensation of the Design-Build Firm's employees assigned to the project at its principal office and branch offices.
 - 8.2 The Design-Build Firm's personnel assigned during the Construction Phase,

T	ı
Initial	C
шиа	ıo

- their duties, and responsibilities to this Project, and the duration of their assignments are shown on Exhibit "N". Such personnel shall not be replaced without prior written consent of the Owner, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.
- 8.3 General operating expenses related to this Project of the Design-Build Firm's principal and branch offices.
- 8.4 The costs of all data processing staff.
- 8.5 Salaries or other compensation of the Design-Build Firm's employees assigned to the project at the job site. The Design-Build Firm's personnel to be assigned to the site during the Construction Phase under the job site management and supervision fee, their duties, responsibilities, and the duration of their assignments are shown on Exhibit "N".
- 8.6 General operating expenses incurred in the management and supervision of the Project, except direct costs, defined as Direct Costs to the Project and as defined in Paragraph 27 below.
- 8.7 Job office supplies including paper, pencils, paper clips, file folders, staples, etc., and janitorial supplies (photo copy or blue print paper not included).
- 8.8 Owner direct tax savings purchase program.
- 8.9 The costs resulting from the services provided by the architects and engineers during the Construction Phase.
- 9. Contract Amount The amount specified in Agreement Declarations, Section 3 of the Agreement as the same may be changed from time to time pursuant to the terms and conditions of this agreement.
- 10. *Contract Documents* The documents as are listed under Agreement Declarations, Section 1 of the Agreement.
- 11. Contract Time The time stated in Exhibit "O", the Agreement to achieve Substantial completion, and to finally complete the Work so that it is ready for final payment in accordance with article 19.1 of these General Conditions.
- 12. Defective An adjective which when modifying the term Construction refers to Construction that is unsatisfactory, faulty or deficient, in that it does not conform to the Contract Documents, or does not meet the requirements of any inspection, reference standard, test, or approval referred to in the Contract Documents, or has been damaged prior to Owner's final payment (unless responsibility for the protection thereof has been assumed by Owner as of the time of damage pursuant to the Terms and Conditions of the Contract Documents).
- 13. Design-Build Firm The individual or entity with whom Owner has entered into the Agreement as indicated in the Agreement.
- 14. Design Criteria Package (Exhibit "I") The drawings and specifications and/or other graphic or written materials, criteria and information concerning Owner's

_	• . •		1
I٢	iiti	വ	C

requirements for the Project, such as design objectives and constraints, space, capacity and performance requirements, flexibility and expandability, which show or describe the character and scope of, or relate to, the Work to be performed or furnished and which have been prepared by or for Owner.

15. Direct Costs to the Project -

- 15.1 Wages paid for labor (as opposed to wages paid for management or supervisory personnel) in the direct employ of "Contractor" in the performance of "The Work" and the associated overhead per this agreement.
- 15.2 Cost of all materials, supplies, and equipment incorporated in the Project, including cost of transportation and storage thereof.
- 15.3 Payments to Subcontractors for performance of services required in the construction of the Project.
- 15.4 Costs, including maintenance and transportation of all equipment, temporary facilities and hand tools not owned by the Contractor, which are employed or consumed in the performance of "The Work".
- 15.5 Rental charges on all necessary machinery and equipment, exclusive of hand tools, used at the Project site and required for performance of "The Work".
- 15.6 Premium costs for all insurance and all bonds that the Contractor is required to procure per this agreement.
- 15.7 Taxes, sales, use gross receipts or similar taxes related to allowable direct costs to the Project.
- 15.8 Minor expenses at the site to be billed at cost, i.e., postage, telephone service, and similar petty cash items required by the Project.
- 15.9 Costs for trash and debris control and removal from the site.
- 15.10 Costs incurred due to an emergency affecting the safety of persons or property at the site.
- 15.11 Costs for temporary facilities during construction as required by the Project.
- 15.12 Upon completion of "The Work" the Design-Build Firm shall provide the required number of "as built" drawings.
- 15.13 Reserve for Casualty loss. A sum shall be included in the Construction Contingency fee to protect the Work in the event of uncompensated loss. In the event this sum is not needed, it shall be returned to the Owner at the time of the issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy.
- 15.14 Owner's reserve, which shall be defined as a sum of money owned by and under the control of the Owner for use as deemed necessary by the Owner for the Work.
- 16. Drawings Those portions of the Contract Documents prepared by or for Design-Builder and approved by Owner consisting of drawings, diagrams, illustrations, schedules and other data which show the scope, extent, and character of the Work.

•	•	. •	1			
I۲	nii	111	പ	C		
		1.14	11	•		

- 17. Effective Date of the Agreement The date indicated in the Agreement on which it becomes effective, but if no such date is indicated it means the date on which the Agreement is signed and delivered by the last of the two parties to sign and deliver.
- 18. Final Completion The time at which all Construction and all Work has been fully, finally, and properly completed in accordance with the Contract Documents and all other duties, responsibilities, and obligations have been performed so as to entitle the Design-Builder to submit a bill or invoice for final payment in accordance with article 19.1 of these General Conditions. The terms finally complete and finally completed also refer to Final Completion.
- 19. Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) The total maximum cost to the County for the Work performed by the Design-Build Firm including the Design/Preconstruction Phase Fee, the Construction Phase Fee, Overhead and Profit, and the Direct Costs.
- 20. *Invoice or Bill* The form which is to be used by DESIGN-BUILDER in requesting progress or final payments and which is to be accompanied by such supporting documentation as is required by the Contract Documents.
- 21. Laws and Regulations; Law or Regulations Any and all applicable laws rules, regulations, ordinances, codes and orders of any and all governmental bodies, agencies, authorities and courts having jurisdiction.
- 22. *Milestone* An event specified in the Contract Documents relating to an intermediate completion date or time prior to Substantial Completion of all the Work which the Design-Builder is required to meet. Time shall be of the essence as to any Milestone.
- 23. Notice of Proceed A written notice given by Owner to Design-Builder authorizing the Work to begin and fixing the date on which the Contract Time will Commence to run.
- 24. Overhead and Profit for the Construction Phase The compensation paid to the Contractor for the overhead, profit and general expenses as negotiated and agreed upon by the Owner, related to the construction phase of the Project, except those expenses expressly included in the Direct Costs of the Project and included in Section 4(B)(Design-Build Firm Fees). Payment shall be made proportionally to the ratio of the Cost of the Work in place, and less retainage, as it bears on the GMP. The balance of the Overhead and Profit shall be paid when construction of the Project is finally completed.
- 25. Owner The public body, or authority, individual or entity with whom Design-

•	• .	•	1			
In	11 f	1 4	al	C		
111		.16	11	•		

Builder has entered into the Agreement and for whom the Work is to be provided as indicated in the Agreement.

- 26. *Owner's Consultant* An individual or entity having a contract with Owner to furnish services as Owner's consultant with respect to the Project.
- 27. Owner's Representative A person designated to act as Owner's representative with respect to Design-Builder's performance of the Work. Such person shall have complete authority to transmit instructions, receive information, interpret and define Owner's policies, and make decisions with respect to performance of the Work.
- 28. Partial Utilization Use by Owner of a substantially completed part of the Work for the purpose for which it is intended (or a related purpose) prior to Substantial Completion of all the Work.
- 29. Petroleum Petroleum, including crude oil or any fraction thereof which is liquid at standard conditions of temperature and pressure (60 degrees Fahrenheit and 14.7 pounds per square inch absolute), such as oil, petroleum, fuel oil, oil sludge, oil refuse, gasoline, kerosene, and oil mixed with other non-Hazardous Wastes and crude oils.
- 30. Design/*Pre-construction Phase Fee* The compensation to be paid to the Design-Build Firm for services performed during the Design/Pre-construction Phase and include:
 - 30.1 Salaries or other compensation of the Design-Build Firm's employees for services provided.
 - 30.2 The costs resulting from the services provided by the architects and engineers during the Design/Pre-construction Phase.
 - 30.3 Costs of other services directly related to the Project.
 - 30.4 The Overhead and Profit related to the Design/Pre-construction Phase.
- 31. *Project* The entire undertaking of the Owner, identified by Owner as indicated in the exhibits of the Agreement, of which the Construction to be provided under the Contract Documents may be the whole, or a part as may be indicated elsewhere in the Contract Documents.
- 32. Schedule of Values A schedule prepared by Design-Builder and accepted by Owner which divides the Work into various major components, units, or divisions and which assigns a portion of the Contract Price to each of such components, units or divisions.
- 33. Site The real property or other areas designated in the Contract Documents as being furnished by Owner for the performance of the Construction, storage, or access.

•	•	. •	- 1			
Ir	111	11	വ	C		
			aı			

- 34. Specifications Those portions of the Contract Documents consisting of written technical descriptions of materials, equipment, construction systems, standards and workmanship as applied to the Construction and certain administrative details applicable thereto.
- 35. Submittal A written or graphic document prepared by or for Design-Builder which is required by the Contract Documents to be submitted to Owner by Design-Builder. Submittal may include, but are not necessarily limited to Drawings, Specifications, Progress Schedules Shop Drawings, Samples, Cash Flow Projections, and Schedules of Values. Submittals other than Drawings and Specifications are not Contract Documents.
- 36. Substantial Completion The time at which the Construction has progressed and the Work has been completed to the point where it is sufficiently complete, in accordance with the Contract Documents, so that the Construction can be effectively and efficiently utilized for the purposes for which it is intended without any material impairment of function. The terms substantially complete and substantially completed refer to Substantial Completion. The term Substantial Completion may be used in the Contract Documents in reference to a particular portion of the construction in which case the term will be applied as defined above only to that portion of the Construction; otherwise it shall be deemed to refer to the total Construction.
- 37. Supplementary Conditions The part of the Contract Documents which amends or supplements these General Conditions.
- 38. *Work* All labor, materials, equipment and incidentals required to fully, finally and properly complete the Construction and otherwise fully, finally and properly comply with all terms and conditions of the Contract Documents.

EXHIBIT "I"

Design Criteria Package

EXHIBIT "J"

Schedule of Project Fees

Payment shall be made in accordance with Exhibit "A", Article 3.5 Final payment of Overhead and Profit for the Construction Phase Pursuant to Section 4(c) the overhead and profit and general expenses for			
Shall be the amount of	\$		
And shall be paid in monthly	payments of \$		
Final payment of	\$		
approval of payment submit			
Pursuant to Section 4(a) the Construction Phase Fee for the Construct			
Shall be a fee of [total amo	ount] \$		
	ments and one final payment upon conclusion of \$		
Payment shall be made in a	ccordance with Exhibit "A", Article 3.5		
Final payment of	\$		
[Project or Projects]	overnead and profit and general expenses for,		
	shall		
be \$ [negotiated per desige paid in accordance with Secondance with Secondan			

EXHIBIT "K"

Approved GMP Drawings and Specifications

List of Drawings

List of Documents

EXHIBIT "L"

Design/Pre-construction Phase Schedule of Values

EXHIBIT "M"

Construction Phase Schedule of Values

EXHIBIT "N"

Design-Build Firm Project Personnel Roster

honly	Finish-only	lestone	Inactive Milestone			Р
Manual Summary	Manual Start-only	mmary (Project Summary Inactive Task			age)
Manual Summary Rollup Progress	Manual	1	Summary	Date: Wed 5/30/18		73
Deadline	Duration	•	Milestone	· Project Schedule		3 of
Inactive Summary External Tasks Manual Task Faternal Milestone	Inactive Sum		Task Split			75
-	Mon 7/22/19	1 day Mon 7/22/19 Mon 7/22/19	1 day	Final Complete	14	
•	Fri 7/19/19	s Tue 7/2/19	14 days	Punch List	13	
•	Fri 6/28/19	y Fri 6/28/19	1 дау	Substantial Completion	12	
	Fri 6/14/19	s Mon 5/6/19	30 days	Parking	ㅁ	
	Fri 6/21/19	90 days Mon 2/18/19	90 day	Building	10	PRO
	Fri 2/15/19	s Mon 1/7/19	30 days	Site Work	9	EXHIB JECT S
	Fri 6/21/19	0 Mon 1/7/19 's	lg 120 days	Construction Phasing	00	IT "O" CHEDULE
	Fri 6/21/19	0 Mon 1/7/19 /s	120 days	Construction Milestones	7	
	Fri 6/21/19	/s Mon 1/7/19	120 days	Start Construction	6	R
	hu 12/20/18	14 days Mon 12/3/18 Thu 12/20/18	14 day	Permitting	5	RFP
	hu 12/20/18	14 days Mon 12/3/18 Thu 12/20/18	14 day	Geotecknical Appl.	4	NC1
Initial	Fri 11/30/18	30 days Vion 10/22/18	30 day	Design Review	ω	
S	Fri 10/19/18	90 days Mon 6/18/18	90 day	Phase 1 (Design Schedule)	2	ontract Fire St
C2 9 14 17 C7 0 77 17 17 17 17 17 17	Fri 8/9/19	300 days Mon 6/18/18		Anticipatedd award	Н	
May June July August Septem Octobe Novem Decemt January Februal March April May June July August Septem Octobe Novem Decemt January Februal March April May June July August Septem Octobe Novem Decemt January Februal March April May June July August Septem Octobe Novem Decemt January Februal March April May June July August Septem Octobe Novem Decemt January Februal March April May June July August Septem Octobe Novem Decemt January Februal March April May June July August Septem Octobe Novem Decemt January Februal March April May June July August Septem Octobe Novem Decemt January Februal March April May June July August Septem Octobe Novem Decemt January Februal March April May June July August Septem Octobe Novem Decemt January Februal March April May June July August Septem Octobe Novem Decemt January Februal March April May June July August Septem Octobe Novem Decemt January Februal March April May June July August Septem Octobe Novem Decemt January Februal March April May June July August Septem Octobe Novem Decemt January Februal March April May June July August Septem Octobe Novem Decemt January Februal March April May June July August April A	Finish May 4/29 5	n Start	Duration	1 Task Name	ī	

Fire Station 71 Design/Build Nassau County, Florida Request for Proposals Price Proposal Form

SECTION III

SECTION III

PROPOSAL FORM

PROJECT IDENTIFICATION:

Fire Station 71 Design/Build Proposal Number NC18-004 Nassau County, Florida

PROPOSAL DEADLINE:

Wednesday, May 30, 2018 at 4:00 PM

THIS PROPOSAL IS SUBMITTED TO:

Nassau County Board of County Commissioners

Robert M. Foster Justice Center Office of the Ex-Officio Clerk 76347 Veterans Way, Suite 456

Yulee, Florida 32097

ARTICLE 1 PROPOSER'S OBLIGATIONS AND REPRESENTATIONS

1.01 The undersigned Proposer proposes and agrees if this Proposal is accepted, to enter into an agreement with Owner in the form included in the Proposal Documents, to perform all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents for the contract price and within the contract times indicated in this Proposal and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents.

Company Name (typed	or printed):	C.C. Borden Const	action, Inc.
Business address:		1019 Rosselle St.	Jax FL 32204
Phone No.:	904-354-3458	Fax No.:	904 354 4770
Contact Name:		Camille C. Bordan	
Contact Title:		President	·
Contact email address:		camille@ccborden.c	con

1.02 Proposer accepts all of the terms and conditions of the Proposal Documents, including without limitation those dealing with the disposition of Proposal security. This Proposal will remain subject to acceptance for sixty (60) days after the day of Proposal opening, or for such longer period of time that Proposer may agree to in writing upon request of the Owner. Proposer will sign and deliver the required number of counterparts of the

27 | Page

RFP NC18-004

Agreement with any Bonds and other documents required by the Request for Proposal and Proposal Form within fifteen (15) days after the date of Owner's Notice of Award.

- 1.03 In submitting this Proposal, Proposer represents and agrees as more fully set forth in the Agreement, that:
 - A. Proposer has examined and carefully studied the Proposal Documents and the following Addenda, receipt of all which is hereby acknowledged:

Addendum No.	Addendum Date
1	5-18-2018
2	5-22-2018

- B. Proposer has visited the Site and become familiar with general, local and Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance and furnishing of the Work.
- C. Proposer is familiar with all federal, state and local Laws and Regulations that may affect cost, progress, performance and furnishing of the Work.
- D. Proposer has carefully studied all: (1) available reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the Site and all available drawings of physical conditions in or relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at or contiguous to the Site (except Underground Facilities) which have been identified or made available by Owner, and (2) reports and drawings of a Hazardous Environmental Condition, if any, which has been identified in the Supplementary Conditions as provided in paragraph 4.06 of the General Conditions.
- E. Proposer has obtained and carefully studied (or assumes responsibility for having done so) all additional or supplementary examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies. and data concerning conditions (surface, subsurface and Underground Facilities) at or contiguous to the Site which may affect costs, progress, performance or furnishing of the Work or which relate to any aspect of the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed by Proposer, including applying the specific means, methods, techniques,

RFP NC18-004

28 | Page

sequences, and procedures of construction expressly required by the Proposal Documents to be employed by Proposer, and safety precautions and programs incident thereto.

- F. Proposer is aware of the general nature of the work to be performed by Owner and others at the Site that relates to Work for which this Proposal is submitted as indicated in the Contract Documents.
- G. Proposer has correlated the information known to Proposer, information and observations obtained from visits to the Site, reports and drawings identified in the Proposal Documents and all additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies and data with the Proposal Documents.
- H. Proposer does not consider that any further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data are necessary for the determination of this Proposal for performance of the Work at the price(s) Proposal and within the times and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Proposal Documents.
- Proposer has given Owner written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies that Proposer has discovered in the Proposal Documents, and the written resolution thereof by Engineer of Record is acceptable to Proposer, and the Proposal Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and conditions for performing and furnishing the Work for which this Proposal is submitted.
- J. This Proposal is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed individual or entity and is not submitted in conformity with any agreement or rules of any group, association, organization or corporation; Proposer has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other Proposer to submit a false or sham Proposal; Proposer has not solicited or induced any individual or entity to refrain from submitting a Proposal; and proposer has not sought by collusion to obtain for itself any advantage over any other Proposer or over Owner.

RFP NC18-004 29 | Page

Initials

ARTICLE 2 CONTRACT PRICE

2.01 Proposer will complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents for the following price(s):

A. DESIGN-BUILD FIRM FEES

- 1. The Cost of all work shall be the amounts indicated below.
- 2. Design/Pre-Construction Phase Fee
- 3. Construction Phase Fee
 - a. The Design-Build Firm's compensation for services performed during the Construction Phase and for profit and overhead related to these services, a total lump sum fee of ______

4. Total Guaranteed Maximum Price (Total of 2.01.A.2 and 2.01.A.3)

a. The GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE to Owner, consisting of the cost of the Work and Proposer's Fee, will not exceed

(\$288551), subject to increases or decreases for changes in the Work.

2.02 All specific cash allowances are included in the price(s) set forth above.

V.E. Change 40055es direction Smoth Block

RFP NC18-004

30 | Page

Initials		

ARTIC	LE 3 CONTRACT TIMES
3 .01	Proposer agrees that the Work shall be substantially completed within() calendar days from the Commencement Date. The
	Work shall be fully completed and deemed ready by the Owner for final completion within () calendar days from the Substantial
	Completion Date. The Contract Time shall be the time period from the Commencement Date to the date of final completion totaling
	() calendar days (herein "Contract Time").
3.02	Contract must meet the following milestones:
	A days from NTP: Phase 1 – Schematic Design Phase
	B days from NTP: Phase 2 – Design Development
	C days from NTP: Phase 3 – Working Drawings and Specifications
	D days from NTP: Phase 4 – Construction/Final Completion
3.03	Proposer accepts the provisions of the Agreement as to liquidated damages in the event of failure to complete the Work within the times specified above, which shall be stated in the Agreement.
ARTICL	E 4 EXHIBITS
4.01	The following documents are attached to and made a condition of this Proposal:
	A. Proposal Security in the form of a certified check of Proposal Bond
ARTICE	5 TERMINOLOGY
5.01	The terms used in this Proposal which are defined in the General Conditions of the Contract Between Owner and Design/Builder ("General Conditions") included a part of the Contract Documents have the meaning assigned to them in the General Conditions.

RFP NC18-004 31 | Page

Fire Station 71 Design/Build Nassau County, Florida Request for Proposals Price Proposal Form

SECTION III

Terms defined in the Request for Proposal are used with the same meaning in this Proposal.

ARTICLE 6	SUBMISSION			•
6.01 SU	BMITTED on	May 30th	, 20 <u>18</u> .	
State Conti	actor License No	CCC1506253		
State Certif	icate of Authority for Co	rporate Engineering	g Practice (If Applicable):	
	[remain	der of page intention	nally left blank]	

RFP NC18-004 32 | P a g e

lf Prop	poser is:	
An Ind	lividual -NIA	
	Name (typed or printed):	
	Ву:	
	(Individual's S	
		v
	Doing business as:	
	Business address:	
	Phone No.:	Fax No.:
<u>A Partr</u>	nership NI *	
	Partnership Name:	
	Ву:	
		attach evidence of authority to sign)
	Name (typed or printed):	
	Business address:	
	Phone No.:	Fax No.:

RFP NC18-004 33 | Page

Fire Station 71 Design/Build Nassau County, Florida Request for Proposals Price Proposal Form

SECTION III

A Corp	<u>oration</u>			
	Corporation Name:	C.C. Borden Const	ruction, Inc.	
(SEAL)				
	State of Incorporation:	Florida		
	Type (General Business, I		mited Liability):	General Business
	Ву:			
	(Signatur	Camille C. Border e - attach evidence of a	ı, Pesident uthority to sign)	
	Name (typed or printed):	Camille C. Border	ı, President	<u> </u>
	Title:		(C	ORPORATE SEAL
	Attest	chan		******
	(Signatur	e of Corporate Secretar	y)	
	Business address:	1019 Rosselle St.	,	
		Jacksonville, FL	32204	
	Phone No.:904_354	3458	Fax No.: <u>904</u> –354	-4 770
	Date of Qualification to d	o business is	4/12/1988	

	venture partner - attach evidence of authority to sign
Title:	
Business address:	
Phone No.:	Fax No.:
Joint Venture Name:	
(Signature	- attach evidence of authority to sign)
Name (typed or printed):	
Title:	
Phone No.:	Fax No.:
Phone and FAX Number, an	d Address for receipt of official communications:

RFP NC18-004

35 | Page

Form 5-A

BID BOND

Any singular reference to Bidder, Surety, Owner, or ot	her party shall be considered plural where applicable.	
BIDDER (Name and Address): C.C. Borden Const Jacksonville FL 320	ruction Inc., 1019 Rosselle Street, 034	·
SURETY (Name and Address of Principal Place of Busin	ness): Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland 1299 Zurich Way, Schaumburg, IL 60196-10	 056
OWNER (Name and Address): Nassau County Boar 96135 Nassau Place	rd of County Commissioners, Ste 6, Yulee, FL 32097	
BID:	,	
Bid Due Date: Tuesday, May 30, 2018		
Project (Brief Description Including Location):	Fire Station 71 Design/Ruild	
,	Fire Station 71 Design/Build	· A
BOND		
Bond Number: 9192584		100
Date (Not later than Bid due date): 5/30/201	18	
Penal Sum: Five percent of bid	5% of bid	
(Words)	(Figures)	
Signety and Ridder Intending to be lead to a		
Surety and Bidder, intending to be legally bound hereb	y, subject to the terms printed on the reverse	
side hereof; do each cause this Bid Bond to be duly exe agent, or representative:	cuted on its behalf by its authorized officer,	
ORDEN.		
BIDDER	SURETY	
	SUREIT	,
C.C. Borden Construction, Inc. 215 (1)	Fidelity and Deposit Company	
Bidder's Name and Corporate Seal	Surety's Name and Corporate Seal	<u></u>
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	A 1	
By: Call (1) aa - Minner	By: Hore	~ ~
Signature and Title	Signature and Title	ر مبرسید. د مبرسید
Camille C. Borden, Passident	(Attach Power of Attorney)	,, -m*
I m		
Attest Landa Masen	Attest: Account Mana	anai
Signature and Title	Signature and Title	49 CI
Linda Mason, Accounting		
Note: Above addresses are to be used for giving required	d notice.	

1

Initials_

E	DENTIFICATE DUES NOT AFFIKMA BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF IN REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, A	SURAN	NCE D	OES NOT CONSTITU	EXTE TE A	ND OR ALT	ER THE CO BETWEEN	OVERAGE AFFORDED E THE ISSUING INSURER	Y THE	POLICI
- 1	MPORTANT: If the certificate holder If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subjectible certificate does not confer rights	t to the	e term	is and conditions of th	ne noli	cv. certain n	olicies may	NAL INSURED provision require an endorsemen	s or be	endors: atement
PRO GI 10	opucer HG Insurance 000 Riverside Ave., Suite 500 acksonville FL 32204	ed discus persons			PHONE (A/C, N	\CT	1-8600	FAX (A/C, No):	904-421	1-8601
						INS	SURER(S) AFFO	RDING COVERAGE		NAIC :
		00000	****	The state of the s	INSURI	ERA: FCCI Ins	surance Grou	ıp		1017
	ureo C Borden Construction Inc.	COBOR	DE-05		INSUR	ERB:	Colorios de la colorio de colorio de la colorio dela colorio de la colo	# 31 (t)		
10	019 Rosselle Street				INSURI	ERC:		Å.	1	
Ja	icksonville FL 32204				INSURI	ERD:		مرابي (يا يا ال		
					INSUR	RE:		- 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1	<u>: </u>	.6. 8
					INSUR	RF:		3. G		
				IUMBER: 259067027	~~~~	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		REVISION NUMBER:	· ·	
C IN	THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIE: NDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY R CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH	EQUIRE PERTA POLIÇI	EMENT. IIN, TH IES. LIN	. TERM OR CONDITION E INSURANCE AFFORDI	OF AN	Y CONTRACT THE POLICIE	OR OTHER	DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT	TO W	WHICH TH
NSR LTR	TYPE OF INSURANCE	ADDLS INSD V	UBR NVD	POLICY NUMBER		POLICY EFF (MM/DDYYYYY)	POLICY EXP (MM/DD/YYYY)	LIMIT	8	
Α	X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY	T		L0005609		6/23/2017	6/23/2018	EACH OCCURRENCE	\$ 1,000,00	00
	CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR							DAMAGE TO RENTED PREMISES (Ea occurrence)	\$ 100,000	
					:			MED EXP (Any one person)	\$ 5,000	
								PERSONAL & ADV INJURY	\$ 1,000,00	30
	GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:							GENERAL AGGREGATE	\$ 2,000,00	
	POLICY X PRO-							PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG	\$ 2,000,00	********
	OTHER:							- The second of	\$,,,
Α	AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY		C/	1100003321		6/23/2017	6/23/2018	COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT (Ea accident)	\$ 1,000.00	00
	X ANY AUTO							BODILY INJURY (Per person)	\$	
	OWNED SCHEDULED AUTOS ONLY AUTOS							BODILY INJURY (Per accident)	\$	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
	X HIRED X NON-OWNED AUTOS ONLY							PROPERTY DAMAGE	\$	
	AUTOS ONLT						•	(Per accident)	\$	
Α	X UMBRELLALIAB X OCCUR		UN	1B0019139		6/23/2017	6/23/2018	EACH OCCURRENCE	\$ 2,000 00	90
	EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE				ļ				\$ 2,000,00	
	DED X RETENTION \$ 10,000	1							\$ 2,000,00	70
A	WORKERS COMPENSATION		00	1WC13A57384		1/1/2018	1/1/2019	X PER OTH-	Φ	
	AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE								\$ 1,000.00	
	OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? (Mandatory in NH)	NIA			į	Ī			i	
	If yes, describe under DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below							EL DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE		
A	Equipment Floater		CM	10003139		6/23/2017	6/23/2018	E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT Leased/Rented	\$ 1,000,00 50,000	10
								3,0000	*****	
				•		-		BOR	DEA."	10.
ESC	CRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHIC	ES (ACC	ORD 101	, Additional Remarks Schedule	, may be	attached if more	space is require	Ad)	CORPORATE	ONSTRUCY
EF	RTIFICATE HOLDER				CANC	ELLATION				
	Nassau County Board of C 96135 Nassau Place Ste 1 Yulee FL 32097	ounty (Comn	ļ-	THE ACCO	EXPIRATION ORDANCE WIT	DATE THE H THE POLIC	ESCRIBED POLICIES BE CA REOF, NOTICE WILL BI Y PROVISIONS.		
					pro Su	cacan	A MARCON STATE			
CC	ORD 25 (2016/03)	The	ACO	₹D name and logo are	regis			ORD CORPORATION. A	II right:	s reserve

Form 5-B

FLORIDA TRENCH SAFETY ACT CERTIFICATION

Bidder acknowledges that included in the various items of the proposal and in the Total Bid Price are costs for complying with the Florida Trench Safety Act (90-96, Laws of Florida) as modified October 1, 2008. The Bidder further identifies the costs to be summarized below:

<u>Cost</u>

1. Trench Safety Act Compliance	\$	
2. Special Shoring	\$	
Identify method of compliance for Item #1:	054 A	
Identify or attach a copy of Special Shoring requ	uirements for Item #2:	3 heet
The undersigned certifies that he/she is the Corproject, and hereby gives written assurance the safety standards specifically set forth in Florida BIDDER:	at Contractor will comp 's Trench Safety Act, La	ly with the applicable trench ws of Florida, 90-96.
Name: <u>Camile</u> Title: <u>Presid</u>	.C. Borden	
Sworn to and subscribed before me this 304 Linda Mas Notary Public	day of	
	LINDA MASON otary Public – State of Florida Commission # GG 191775 y Comm. Expires Apr 27, 2022 through National Netary Assn.	

- 7. Any suit or action under this Bond shall be commenced only in a court of competent jurisdiction located in the slate in which the Project is located.
- 8. Notices required hereunder shall be in writing and sent to Bidder and Surety at their respective addresses shown on the face of this Bond. Such notices may be sent by personal delivery, commercial courier, or by United States Registered or Certified Mail, return receipt requested, postage pre-paid, and shall be deemed to be effective upon receipt by the party concerned.
- 9. Surety shall cause to be attached to this Bond a current and effective Power of Attorney evidencing the authority of the officer, agent, or representative who executed this Bond on behalf of Surety to execute, seal, and deliver such Bond and bind the Surety thereby.
- 10. This Bond is intended to conform to all applicable statutory requirements. Any applicable requirement of any applicable statute that has been omitted from this Bond shall be deemed to be included herein as if set forth at length. If any provision of this Bond conflicts with any applicable statute, then the provision of said statute shall govern and the remainder of this Bond that is not in conflict therewith shall continue in full force and effect.
- 11. The term "Bid" as used herein includes a Bid, offer, or proposal as applicable.

and the state of	\$. W . *	and the second second
	1,00	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *
• 7	48. of 4	··· ,
:	* ** *****	
	That I have been	المرابع والمعهدم والمرابعة يعاده ويواه ويواهمون

TO:

Form 5-C

NONCOLLUSION AFFIDAVIT

TO: T	he <u>Nassau Coun</u>	by herein called the	"County."
Pursuant	to bidding requirements	for the work titled "	
	Fire Sta	tion No. 71 Design/Build	<i>"</i>
the enclo	sed contract documents s	shall be provided to the County.	
State of _	Florida		,
County of	f_Duval		the second secon
	amille C. Borden		being first duly sworn,
deposes,	and says that:		
А		sident.	(officer's title)
		n Construction, Inc. s submitted the attached bid;	(company name),
В	•	d respecting the preparation and nstances respecting such bid;	contents of the attached bid and of
C	. Such bid is genuine	e and is not a collusive or sham bi	id;
D	employees, or part conspired, connive person to submit a attached bid has be contract, or has in or communication or prices in the atta cost element of the any collusion, cons	cies in interest, including this affiance, or agreed, directly or indirectly collusive or sham bid in connect een submitted or to refrain from any manner, directly or indirectly or conference with any other Bidder, e bid price or the bid price of any	y with any other Bidder, firm, or ion with the contract for which the bidding in connection with such y, sought by agreement or collusion dder, firm, or person to fix the price or to fix any overhead, profit, or other Bidder, or to secure through agreement any advantage against the
E.	any collusion, cons	piracy, connivance, or unlawful a	air and proper and are not tainted by greement on the part of the Bidder byees, or parties in interest, including

(Signed) Ciliu Clara

.1 . .

Form 5-D

DRUG FREE WORKPLACE CERTIFICATE

l, the i	undersigned, in accordance with Florida S	Statute 287.087, hereby certify th	at
•	C.C. Borden Construction, Inc.	(print or typ	e name of firm)
>	Publishes a written statement notifying possession or use of a controlled substanctions that will be taken against violat	ance in the workplace named abo	
>	Informs employees about the dangers of maintaining a drug free working environmental employee assistance programs, and the drug use violations.	nment, and available drug counse	eling, rehabilitation, and
>	Gives each employee engaged in provided bid or proposal, a copy of the statement		ervices that are under
>	Notifies the employees that as a condition services that are under bid or proposal, and will notify the employer of any conviolation of Chapter 1893, or any control States, for a violation occurring in the work conviction, and requires employees to stheir receipt.	the employee will abide by the to viction of, plea of guilty or nolo co olled substance law of the State o vork place, no later than five (5) d	erms of the statement ontendere to, any f Florida or the United ays after such
>	Imposes a sanction on, or requires the s rehabilitation program, if such is available is so convicted.		
>	Makes a good faith effort to continue to implementation of a drug free work place.		through the
	erson authorized to sign a statement, I co ation complies fully with the requirement	. 6 . 1 . 1	
		_Cd	v CDaa
		5/30/2018	Authorized Signature
			Date Signed

State of:	Florida				
County of:	Duel	NAME OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PR			
Sworn to and sub	scribed before me	this 30th	day of _ <u> </u>	an	20 <u>_</u> 1,8
Personally known	or Proc	duced Identifica	ation		
				(Specify type of Ide	entification)
Lince	le Mare	m			
Notary Public		LINDA MASON			
	】《金沙》(tary Public – State of Fl Commission = GG 1917 Comm. Expires Apr 27,	75		
My commission o	20275 1 250	hrough National Notary	· •		

NASSAU COUNTY

SWORN STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 287.133(3)(a), <u>FLORIDA STATUTES</u>, ON PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES

TO BE RETURNED WITH BID

THIS MUST BE SIGNED IN THE PRESENCE OF A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICER AUTHORIZED TO ADMINISTER OATHS

1.	This sworn statement is submitted with Bid, Proposal or Contract for
	REP NC 18-004 FIRE STATION 71 DESIGN/BUILD
2.	This sworn statement is submitted by CAMPILE C. FORDEN CONSTRUCTION (entity, INC.
	submitting sworn statement), whose business address is
	1019 Rosselle St, Jacksonville, Fl 32204 and
	its Federal Employee Identification Number (FEIN) is 59_2911644 . (if the
	entity has no FEIN, include the Social Security Number of the individual signing this sworn
	statement:).
3.	My name is CAMILLE C. BRIEN (please print name of individual signing),
	and my relationship to the entity named above is
4.	I understand that a "public entity crime" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(g), Florida Statutes,
	means a violation of any state or federal law by a person with respect to and directly related to the
	transaction of business with any public entity or with an agency or political subdivision of any
	other state or with the United States, including, but not limited to, any bid or contract for goods or
	services, any leases for real property, or any contract for the construction or repair of a public
	building or public work, to be provided to any public entity or an agency or political subdivision
	of any other state or of the United States and involving antitrust, fraud, theft, bribery, collusion,
	racketeering, conspiracy, or material misrepresentation.
5.	I understand that "convicted" or "conviction" as defined in paragraph 287.133(1)(b), Florida
	Statutes, means a finding of guilt or a conviction or a public entity crime, with or without an
	adjudication of guilt, in any federal or state trial court of record relating to charges brought by
	indictment or information after July 1, 1989, as a result of a jury verdict, non-jury trial, or entry of
	a plea of guilty or nolo contendere.
6.	I understand that an "affiliate" as defined in paragraph 287.133(1)(a), Florida Statutes, means:
	a) A predecessor Enor successor of a person convicted of a public entity crime; or
	b) An entity under the control of any natural person who is active in the management of
	the entity and who has been convicted of a public entity crime. The term "affiliate"
	includes those officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees,
	members, and agents who are active in the management of an affiliate. The
	ownership by one person of shares constituting a controlling interest in another
	person, or a pooling of equipment or income among persons when not to fair market
	value under an arm's length agreement, shall be prima facie case that one person
	controls another person. A person who knowingly enters into a joint venture with a
	person who has been convicted of a public entity crime in Florida during the
	preceding thirty-six (36) months shall be considered an affiliate.
~	1 1 4 14 4 6
7.	I understand that a "person" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(e), Florida Statutes, means any
	natural person or entity organized under the laws of any state or of the United States with the
	legal power to enter into binding contract and which bids or applies to bid on contracts let by a
	public entity, or which otherwise transacts or applies to transact business with a public entity.

Initials

8.	The term "person" includes those officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, and agents who are active in management of an entity. Based on information and belief, the statement, which I have marked below, is true in relation to the entity submitting this sworn statement. (Please indicate which statement applies.)
the	Neither the entity submitting this sworn statement, nor any of its officers, directors, cutives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in management of entity, nor any affiliate of the entity have been charged with and convicted of a public entity ne subsequent to July 1, 1989.
the	The entity submitting this sworn statement, or one of more of the officers, directors, cutives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in management of entity, or an affiliate of the entity has been charged with and convicted of a public entity ne subsequent to July 1, 1989, and (Please indicate which additional statement applies.)
Of	There has been a proceeding concerning the conviction before a hearing officer of the Florida, Division of Administrative Hearings. The final order entered by the Hearing icer did not place the person or affiliate on the convicted vendor list. (Please attach a copy he final order.)
He- inte	The person or affiliate was placed on the convicted vendor list. There has been a sequent proceeding before a hearing officer of the State of Florida, Division of Administrative urings. The final order entered by the hearing officer determined that it was in the public rest to remove the person or affiliate from the convicted vendor list. (Please attach a copy of final order.)
any	The person or affiliate has not been placed on the convicted vendor list. (Please describe action taken by or pending with the Department of General Services.)
	Cow Com
	CAMILIE C. BORDEN, PRESIDENT (Signature)
	_ 5/30/2018 Date
ST	ATE OF FLORIDA
	UNTY OF
wh	RSONALLY APPREAED BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, <i>Camille M. Baseles</i> , after first being sworn by me, affixed his/her signature in the space provided above on this day of May , 2018.
	Livila Maren (Notary Public)
Му	Commission Expires: LINDA MASON Notary Public – State of Florida Commission # GG 191775 My Comm. Expires Apr 27, 2022 Bonded through National Notary Assn.

Initials_

Fire Station 71 Design/Build Addendum No. 1

NC18-004

Q10- Drawing and specification indicate alternates. Proposal form does not have a line for alternates. Please provide a list and clarification of the alternates as well as a modified proposal form.

Ans. There are no bid alternates. All should just provide the base price or GMP in accordance with the design-build criteria package. Value engineering could be considered after the award is made if deemed in the best interest (cost savings) for the County.

Part 2 - Clarifications

1. Form 5-A (Bid Bond) has incorrect Bid information. Please see new Bid Bond sheet (Attached) and incorporate in proposals.

2. Tree Mitigation (See attached GIS map)

There are no tree protection standards in that area. You could clear cut the entire site if desired. However, there are landscape and buffer requirements that include minimum tree planting standards. In some instances, maintaining existing trees can off-set new plantings which may save a few dollars.

Below are two links the direct you to the applicable section of Code. If you have any specific questions let me know! (Chester is a Major Collector when determining the buffer width along the ROW)

https://library.municode.com/fl/nassau county/codes/code of ordinances?nodeId=APXAL ADECO ORDINANCE NO. 97-19 NASSAU CO FLORIDA ART37NAREPR S37.05LA

https://library.municode.com/fl/nassau county/codes/code of ordinances?nodeId=APXAL ADECO ORDINANCE NO. 97-19 NASSAU CO FLORIDA ART37NAREPR S37.06BUBECEUS

ATTACHMENTS:

Nassau GIS Site Map	
Form 5A- Bid Bond Form	

ACKNOWLEDGMENT IS HEREBY MADE OF RECEIPT OF THIS ADDENDUM NO. 1, ISSUED DURING THE SOLICITATION PERIOD:

Vendor Signature:	Com Clara	Date:	5/30/2018
	Camille C. Borden, President		

NOTE: You are required to acknowledge receipt of this addendum by signing and submitting it with your pre-qualification application (signature page only)

submitting it with your pre-qualification application (signature page only).

End of Addendum #1



NASSAU COUNTY

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Contract Management Department 96135 Nassau Place, Suite 6

Yulee, Florida 32097

904-530-6040 Fax: 904-321-2658

Grayson Hagins ghagins@nassaucountyfl.com

REMINDER: This addendum must be acknowledged, signed and returned with your proposal. Failure to comply may result in disqualification of your submittal.

TO:

All Proposers

FROM:

Grayson Hagins, Contract Management

SUBJECT:

Addendum #2

Request for Proposals (RFP) NC18-004

Fire Station 71 Design/Build

May 22, 2018

This addendum is hereby incorporated into the bid documents of the project referenced above. The following items are clarifications, corrections, additions, deletions and/or revisions to, and shall take precedence over, the original documents.

Part 1 – Questions & Answers

N/A

Part 2 - Clarifications

- C1. In Addendum No. 1 (Q1 & Q8) there were requests for clarification regarding Wetland Permitting/Mitigation Credits. The County has verified that there are sufficient mitigation bank credits available for this project. This will be handled by Nassau County.
- C2. In Addendum No. 1 (Q4) there was a question regarding the 911 address for the site. The address assigned to parcel 44-3N-28-0000-0001-0530 is 96262 Chester Road, Yulee, FL 32097.
- C3. In response to Q5 in Addendum No. 1 regarding establishing an allowance for the estimated fees for the coordination of all utilities; the county is setting the allowance as \$40,000 (\$30K for water/sewer and \$10,000 for all others).

ACKNOWLEDGMENT IS HEREBY MADE OF RECEIPT OF THIS ADDENDUM NO. 2, ISSUED DURING THE SOLICITATION PERIOD:

Vendor Signature:

Carin Ward

Date:

5/30/2018

Camille C. Borden, Pesident

NOTE: You are required to acknowledge receipt of this addendum by signing and submitting it with your pre-qualification application (signature page only).

End of Addendum #2



C.C. BORDEN CONSTRUCTION, INC.

July 31, 2018

Nassau County Board of County Commissioners Contract Management Department 96135 Nassau Place, Suite 6 Yulee, FL 32097

Attn: G

Grayson Hagins

Contract /Purchasing Manager

Subject: Fire Station 71 Design Build

Mr. Hagins:

Our proposed Architect for this project provided a lump sum proposal for this project. They have notified CC Borden Construction that the amount was based upon the estimate for construction being \$1,700,000.

They have requested an additional \$132,500.00 be added if they design the project. That amount would have to be added to our contract at this point in time.

We also noted in an earlier email that we used regular smooth face block unfinished (not painted) for the exterior of this building.

Let us know if you have any questions.

Very Truly Yours,

Camille C. Borden

President